Burwill Holdings Limited
BEHERERLAD I

(REREEMAI2ERL D)
i 10 1K 5% 1 24




Contents B &%

Corporate Information
NREHR 2

Management Discussion and Analysis
BT T s E AT 4

Biographies of Directors

EEHE 11

Report of Directors

BERHWE 15

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE 33

Independent Auditors’ Report
B BN RS 43

Balance Sheets

BEEAER 45

Consolidated Income Statement
REBmE 47

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeETEEEmK 48

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SAERPDE 49

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HREBESRER 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AV HRME 53

Schedule of Properties held for Investment

BANE-HE 155

Five Years’ Financial Summary

R FHEHE 156

I Annual Report 2009 3R 1



DIRECTORS EE

CHAN Shing, Chairman & Managing Director
SIT Hoi Tung, Executive Director & Deputy General Manager

BRI (L AR EFARAEIE)
EEBR(BTTEFEREFIEASIE)

YANG Dawei, Executive Director BREBTESE)
LAU Ting, Executive Director Ris(HiTEE)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia, Executive Director EMMH77EE)
KWOK Wai Lam, Executive Director BERBTEE)
YIN Mark, Executive Director FU(H77EFE)
SHAM Kai Man, Executive Director BRI (HATTEE)

CUI Shu Ming, Independent Non-Executive Director
MIAO Gengshu, Independent Non-Executive Director
HUANG Shenglan, Independent Non-Executive Director

EEROBLINTEF)
HME (B LIFHNTTEF)
BBE(BUIHTEE)

SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, Non-Executive Director PRE(EHITEE)
COMPANY SECRETARY LEIWE

KWOK Wai Lam =ME R

AUDIT COMMITTEE EZERY

CUI Shu Ming EER

MIAQ Gengshu wHE

HUANG Shenglan EHE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE HE=EEE

CUI Shu Ming EER

HUANG Shenglan =

SIT Hoi Tung [N
AUDITORS = EED

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng HFHL RIS
Chartered Accountants B AR
Certified Public Accountants T H ) e A
LEGAL ADVISERS EERER
Appleby Appleby

Baker & McKenzie

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Ao - EERREANTT
MM EE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

B 2 Annual Report 2009 4 3z |



HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit 1402, 14th Floor
Office Tower
Convention Plaza

1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2877 7368
Fax: (852) 2877 7037

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

SHARE TRANSFER AGENT IN SINGAPORE

Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd.
50 Raffles Place

Singapore Land Tower #32-01

Singapore 048623

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

BNP Paribas

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fortis Bank

Societe Generale

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

www.burwill.com

HEMEEREEERME

HEET

BB 1R
CHREES
WARIEI14E1402F
Tk 0 (852) 2877 7368
{8H : (852) 2877 7037

BfpBREREE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

FEkiEFERESE

EBEPRBEELERAA
BEEREAER1835
AFFR L TMIE

ik E Lk e ]

Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd.
50 Raffles Place

Singapore Land Tower #32-01

Singapore 048623

FEERBT

BARTT

EBEERIRTT
ERRIT(FE)BERAT
= mIRTT

RBFLZEIRTT
BITIRIT(BE)ER A
R LBESRITERAQT]

E Rt

www.burwill.com

I Annual Report 2009 3R 3



iy

E)S

)]

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The year 2009 was not only a year with turbulence and
opportunities, but also a year when our Group worked hard to
adjust our core business structure and aggressively developed
our steel upstream resources.

Affected by the financial tsunami, the Group’s performance
was unsatisfactory. Due to the tepid demand of the
international steel market, steel price and transactions
plummeted. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group recorded a 61% decrease in turnover to approximately
HK$3.3 billion compared with a year ago. Gross profit
dropped 56% to approximately HK$98 million. Loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year
was approximately HK$4.65 million.

Steel Business

In the first half of 2009, the impacts of the financial tsunami
spread to global markets. A credit crunch, funds shortage as
well as the strong US dollar all led to the slump of commodity
prices and a sharp drop in market demand. As a result, the
CRU international iron price index fell 37.6% compared with
the year before. Global crude steel productivity dropped
except in China and India. Various adverse factors led to the
sharp decrease of trade, which is rare. Entering the second
half of the year, although the Chinese market improved,
thanks to government policies to stimulate the economy, the
real economy of North America and Europe recovered slowly
with subdued demand and inverse prices. That led to a drastic
drop in China’s steel exports compared with the year before.
According to China’s National Bureau of Statistics, China
exported only 24.6 million tons of steel in 2009, a substantial
58.5% slump compared with the same period a year ago. The
Group’s trade sector strictly controlled the risk, decreasing
the trade volume to maintain a basic trade amount in the
traditional markets including China, Southeast Asia, southern
Europe and India. Profitability was maintained while the
performance was below expectations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & IF

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Business (continued)

In respect to the steel processing business, the Group’s
two factories in Dongguan reached an impasse of shrinking
exports and dropping selling price, which resulted in a loss.
In recent years, all processing companies dominated by
foreign enterprises in the Pearl River Delta area face strong
competition and a difficult business climate. Influenced
by the financial tsunami, orders from America and Europe
fell, adding to the misery of the steel processing business.
Although sales orders at the two factories were slightly higher
in the second half of 2009, the overall environment did not
see improvement.

In order to aggressively seek market opportunities and to
boost its competitiveness amid a global economic recovery,
the Group set out four priorities during the year for long-term
growth and expansion.

With respect to steel procurement and the expansion of a
marketing network, the Group not only continues to solid the
traditional markets in China and Asia, but also strives to speed
up the development of markets in Europe, Central and South
America, North Africa and the Middle East. That is in line with
the trend that China will become the world'’s biggest steel net
exporter. The opening of a representative office in Greece and
the upgrading of the office in Turkey to a branch during the
year marked the expansion of the Group’s business operations
in the Middle East as well as southern and eastern Europe.

In terms of getting a steady supply of upstream resources
of steel, the Group successfully signed a five-year iron ore
supply contract in July 2009 valued at US$500 million with
Australia’s third largest iron ore producer, FMG. The deal
provided a solid foundation for the development of our future
global iron ore trade and enlarged the Group’s income source
and profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 [ 57

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Business (continued)

With respect to eliminating obsolete production capacity
and increasing competitiveness, the two steel processing
factories located in Guancheng and Changan, Dongguan,
China, were combined and moved to the Changan factory
area in the fourth quarter of 2009. The Group redeveloped
the production line, eliminated some of the old machines and
downsized frontline staff for the purposes of saving energy,
controlling cost, optimizing production and management,
and raising competitiveness. At the end of March 2010, the
project was fundamentally completed. A self-owned plot
covering over 45 acres was made available and can be utilized
in future.

As part of the expansion of the mineral resources business,
the Group signed a Share Purchase Agreement with Tai
Xin Investment Limited to acquire a 51% stake in a target
company for a consideration of HK$500 million in November
2009. Meanwhile, the Group was granted a call option to
acquire no less than 70% of the target company’s issued share
capital. Target company is engaged in exploiting, refining,
processing and the sale of iron ore and refined iron ore. It also
owns a large magnetite iron mine in Laiyang City, Shandong
Province, covering an area of approximately 21 sqg. km. The
iron ore has many advantages, including rich reserves, a
desirable geological location, and low cost in exploitation and
mineral separation, scalable, along with potential of long-term
exploiting and processing. The approval by the shareholders
at the special general meeting was obtained and the deal of
acquiring a 51% stake in the target company was completed
on 31 March 2010. The Group believes the acquisition is of
great significance. We are confident in the prospects of the
iron ore, and that it will bring a positive and profound impact
for the Group’s long-term profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & IF

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Business (continued)

Looking forward to the year 2010, the Group’s operating
environment is expected to improve considerably. The
economy of China keeps on growing steadily; government
measures to revive the economy have started to take effect;
the moderately easy monetary policy has greatly improved
liquidity; and the global economy is gradually bottoming out.
After the inventory adjustment of steel companies, commodity
prices began to rise, which drives the recovery of key steel
markets in America, Europe and Asia. Especially when large
infrastructure projects in India, Brazil and North Africa began
to break ground, demand for steel imports and exports is
expected to rise. In the first quarter, the prices of iron ore,
steel crap, coking coal and steam coal have risen. The prices
of iron ore have doubled from last year’'s lowest levels,
pushing up the cost of steel production and supporting steel
prices. The global steel market is expected to see relatively
balanced supply and demand.

According to the current orders and implementation status
of sales contracts, the Group’s trade sector is expected to
be profitable this year. After consolidation and adjustment,
the Dongguan factory, which has adopted product cost
control programs and enhance the operation efficiency,
will make efforts to turn into profit. To keep pace with the
development of the magnetite iron mine in Laiyang City,
Shandong Province, the brand-new No.1 Mineral Processing
Plant has begun operation at the end of March. In addition,
the No.2 Mineral Processing Plant will be completed and put
into operation in the second half of this year. It is anticipated
that the project will start to generate profits for the Group in
2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Commercial Property Investment - Yangzhou Times
Square

Yangzhou Times Square, an integrated shopping mall
developed by the Group in China, was only slightly affected
by the financial tsunami. The tenancy agreements of
preferential rent covering 8,000m? signed during the opening
of the Yangzhou Times Square, along with other leases
involving near 10,000m2, are due to expire within one to two
years. Leveraging the healthy operation of Yangzhou Times
Square, the increasing purchasing power of local consumers
and newly signed contracts in the first quarter of this year
with a substantial increase in shop rental, the Group believes
the plaza’s overall rent increments will further step up in the
future.

Meanwhile, the Group has repurchased shops covering
an area of over 3,600m? to raise its property ownership
to facilitate the operation and management as well as to
deliver capital gain. It is planned to renovate and upgrade the
shopping mall facilities in one to two years. The Group will
also introduce renowned brands to meet the development of
the Yangzhou Times Square in the long run.

Listed Securities Investment — Lottery Business of
Associated Company

China LotSynergy Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8161) (“CLS")
was an associated company held by the Group since it was
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged in the provision of
lottery systems, gaming products, terminal equipment and
related technologies and marketing services to the public
welfare lottery market in China. As of 31 December 2009, the
Group directly held a 20.83% stake in CLS.

To clearly differentiate the businesses of the Group and
CLS, providing a sound business positioning and rewarding
the shareholders, the Group announced distributing 1.54
billion CLS shares with a market value of HK$539 million
to its shareholders on 15 December 2009. The distribution
was completed on 27 January 2010 with the shareholders’
approval at the special general meeting. Therefore, CLS is no
longer the Group’s associated company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 [ 57

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In October 2009, the Company issued and allotted
310,000,000 new shares at a subscription price of HK$0.35
per share, receiving net proceeds of approximately
HK$106,500,000. The issuance of new shares broadened the
Company’s capital base and enhanced the capital structure of
the Group. As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s total equity
increased to HK$1,588,051,000 (2008: HK$1,469,321,000).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$293,639,000 (2008:
HK$361,849,000) and the current ratio, as a ratio of current
assets to current liabilities, was 1.86 (2008: 1.76).

As at 31 December 2009, the total borrowings of the
Group were approximately HK$959,000,000 (2008:
HK$597,000,000) and their maturity profile was as follows:

RERHHRMERE

RZZBEENF+A  ARBUSERREE
7 1 0.35 7T % 17 & B2 % 310,000,000 A% 37
[ 15 - % & F % 4975 ¥ 106,500,000 7T °
RRBMEBETER T AR AINERNER -
WEEAEBENELREE R NF
TZA=1T—H8 FAEBEZEERENE
75 #1,588,051,000 L ( ZEZ/)\F : B
1,469,321,0007T) °

N-ZEEhE+-A=+—0 KA&EEHH
B& RIRITAE 8 4975 #5 293,639,000 ( =&
T\ : B¥361,849,0007T) KRN R G
BEERREABMEL)B1.86( ZTT/\F :
1.76) °

R-ZZETEAFE+_A=+—H £EZHE
A A7 959,000,000 ( ZEEN\F : B
#597,000,0007T) + EEKHARAT ¢

2009 2008

HK$ million HK$ million

BYEHET BEEET

Within one year —&FR 567 444
In the second year F_4F 128 26
In the third to fifth year F=FEFENF 231 74
In the sixth to tenth year BERFERETF 33 53
959 597

The Group's borrowings were principally denominated in US AEBERFENUET  ARERBIRE

Dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, and were charged
interest at prevailing market rates.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s gearing ratio, as a ratio
of total borrowings net of total cash and cash equivalents to
total equity, was 0.44 (2008: 0.19).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group considers that its operations are of minimal
exchange risk as its receipts, payments, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in US Dollar, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. Forward exchange contracts are used for
hedging purposes when required.

BB XNTISEEFE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis & ¥ [& &7 5% £2 2 AT
CORPORATE GUARANTEES AEREE
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had the following R-BEZENE+_A=+—H KAEHEAHFU
outstanding corporate guarantees: RS A FIER -
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHTRT BT
Guarantee for general banking Bl ENTRITRE
facilities granted to an associate VEH Z 1R 21,730 21,730
Guarantee for general banking REEFRITRE
facilities granted to a supplier B 2 R - 23,400
Guarantees given to banks for AEBYEREBEEZBER
mortgage facilities granted to the mrASRITIEL 2 &R
buyers of the Group’s properties 86 2,107
21,816 47,237
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES BRAR

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had contingent liabilities
relating to Mainland China land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately HK$30,009,000 (2008: HK$30,009,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no capital
commitments (2008: HK$16,000).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, the following assets were pledged:
(i) certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings with a
net book amount of approximately HK$141,338,000 (2008:
HK$113,982,000); (ii) certain motor vehicles and machinery
with a net book amount of approximately HK$4,577,000
(2008: HK$5,905,000); and (iii) certain investment properties
of approximately HK$550,613,000 (2008: HK$449,942,000).

STAFF

As at 31 December 2009, the Group employed 597 staff.
Staff remuneration packages are structured and reviewed
by reference to market terms and individual merits. The
Group also provides other staff benefits which include year
end double pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. Share options and discretionary bonus may also be
granted to eligible staff based on individual and the Group
performances. Training programmes for staff are provided as
and when required.

RZEZNF+ZA=+—8 XEH
ERATEITHIZERMNIRABENEE
30,009,000 0 (=& Z /\4F : #¥30,009,000
JL) °

L EX 3]
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T : (VEHEE L - T FARERE
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SRR EEE LB 4,577,000 ( ZEE )\
& #5,905,0007T) ¢ R (i) 2B 1D R E Y
¥ 478 #550,613,0007C( —EF)\F : B
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Biographies of Directors = % fj &

Mr. CHAN Shing, aged 54
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as Chairman and Managing
Director in 1998. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience
in international trading of metal, the processing and
manufacturing of related products, the management of
industrial enterprises, the investment in industrial and
commercial properties, the investment in marketable securities
and corporate planning and management. Mr. CHAN is also
an Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.
Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN.

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, aged 44
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. SIT joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy
General Manager in 2006. Mr. SIT is also a Director of Burwill
Resources Limited in-charge of contracts and import/export
bills operation for metal trading. He graduated from the
Finance Department of Jinan University in Guangzhou. He had
worked for banking sector and metal trading companies and
has over 16 years’ experience in international metal trading
and import/export bills operation.

Mr. YANG Dawei, aged 57
Executive Director

Mr. YANG joined the Group in March 2001 and is an Executive
Director. Mr. YANG is a Senior Economist of the PRC. In mid-
1980’s, he was employed as the Head of Changzhou Tractor
Company, Jiangsu Province; the Chairman of Changzhou City
Labour Union and the Head of Liyang City, Jiangsu Province.
In mid 1990’s, he was elected as Routing Deputy Mayor of
Changzhou City Government, Jiangsu Province. He is currently
the Chairman of the Jiangsu Overseas Group Corp. and the
Chairman and President of Zhong Shan Company Limited,
the window company of the Jiangsu Province in Hong Kong.
He has got over 20 years of experience in corporate planning
and management, international trade, corporate finance and
project investment, international economic and technology
cooperation.
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Biographies of Directors = % fj &

Ms. LAU Ting, aged 53
Executive Director

Ms. LAU joined the Group as an Executive Director in
1998. Ms. LAU has over 18 years of experience in business
development and strategic planning, project investment and
financial management. She is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing.
Ms. LAU is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia, aged 43
Executive Director

Ms. TUNG joined the Group in 1988 and is an Executive
Director. Ms. TUNG is currently in-charge of the Investment
Division. She holds a bachelor's degree in Management
Sciences from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, aged 47
Executive Director

Mr. KWOK joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive
Director. He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s
Financial Controller. Mr. KWOK has over 20 years’ experience
in the areas of auditing, finance and accounting. He is a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. YIN Mark, aged 52
Executive Director

Mr. YIN joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 1999. He graduated from Guangzhou
Foreign Language University and worked for China National
Metals and Minerals Import and Export Corporation (renamed
China Minmetals Corporation) and European multinational
steel manufacturing and trading company. He is currently the
President of Burwill Steel Pipes Limited, and is in-charge of
the Group's steel processing division and responsible for its
daily management, business planning and development. He
has over 30 years of experience in international metal trading.
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Mr. SHAM Kai Man, aged 43
Executive Director

Mr. SHAM joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is the Managing Director
of Burwill Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in-
charge of the Group’s steel and mineral trading business. Mr.
SHAM graduated from The University of Hong Kong and, prior
to joining the Group, had worked for a multinational steel
trading company for 7 years. He has over 16 years extensive
experience in steel trading and gains good international
connections.

Mr. CUI Shu Ming, aged 73
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CUI joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. Mr. CUI graduated from People’s University
of China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China,
Jiangsu branch, the Executive Director of The National
Commercial Bank, Ltd. and the General Manager of its
Hong Kong branch, a Director and the Executive Vice
President of The Ka Wah Bank Ltd.. Mr. CUl is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, both
are listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 40 years’
experience in international finance and corporate planning
and management.

Mr. MIAO Gengshu, aged 68
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. MIAO joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in December 2008. He is a senior economist,
graduated from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics
with major in economics and trade. He is currently the
president of China Council for International Investment
Promotion, the chairman of Sinotrans CSC Group (name
changed after the merging of China National Foreign Trade
Transportation (Group) Corporation and China Changjiang
National Shipping (Group) Corporation), the chairman
representing the Chinese side in the Sino-Brazil Business
Council and a vice chairman of China International Trade
Society. Mr. MIAO was a member of the 10th National
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“CPPCC") and a member of the Foreign Affairs
Committee of the CPPCC. He was the president of China
Minmetals Corporation, the general manager of Shanghai
Metals & Minerals Import & Export Company and a deputy
director general of Shanghai Foreign Economics & Trade
Commission.
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Mr. HUANG Shenglan, aged 58
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in September 2004. Mr. HUANG was
an executive director and the deputy governor of China
Everbright Bank, Head Office and was an executive director
and the general manager of China Everbright Technology
Limited. Mr. HUANG holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong
Normal University and in International Economics from
Huadong Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law from Xiamen University and in Advanced
Management Programme from the Business School of Harvard
University, USA. Mr. HUANG is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited,
Symphony Holdings Limited and Chongging Road & Bridge
Co. Ltd.

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, aged 64
Non-Executive Director

Mr. SZE was appointed as a Non-Executive Director in 2000.
Mr. SZE has over 30 years of experience in the financial and
securities field. He graduated with a Master of Laws (LLM)
Degree from The University of Hong Kong. He is currently a
Member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal. He
was a former Council Member, Member of the Main Board
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Member of the Cash Market Consultative Panel of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and a former
Independent Non-Executive director of C Y Foundation Group
Limited. Mr. SZE is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited, Greentown
China Holdings Limited, Harbour Centre Development Limited
and Walker Group Holdings Limited, all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. SZE is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors Limited.
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Report of Directors & £ B %

The board of Directors of the Company presents to the
shareholders their report together with the audited financial
statements of Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 47.

The respective state of affairs of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2009 are set out in the balance sheets on
pages 45 and 46.

The Group’s cash flows are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 51 and 52.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Following the completion of the acquisition of magnetite
iron ore mining businesses in the PRC on 31 March 2010,
the principal activities of the Group are steel trading, steel
processing, mineral resources exploration and development
and commercial property investment.

The Group's segment results for the year and other segment
information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.
DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five major
customers combined is less than 30%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the above suppliers or customers at any time during
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties during the year are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of properties held by the Group for investment
as at 31 December 2009 are set out on page 155.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 December 2009 are set out in notes 9 and
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans are set out in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2009,
around 78% of the Group’s bank loans were denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar and US Dollar. All the bank loans bear
interest at prevailing market rates.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to
HK$133,631,000 (2008: HK$141,709,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction
against the granting of such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 20009.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was duly adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the 2002 Annual General
Meeting held on 6 June 2002, details of which are set out as
follows:

() Summary of terms of the Scheme
(i) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
to Participants (as stated in paragraph (ii)) to
contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BEEEHE 2)
() Summary of terms of the Scheme (continued) (1) MBREdnTIEERE)

(i)~ Participants (i) BEEE
Any person being an employee, officer, buying REBEREE(BIENER /TS
agent, selling agent, consultant, sales representative ERIEHTES) % HER
or marketing representative of, or supplier or 1B . SHERIE - EER - HEREK
provider of goods or services to, the Group, TR FRE RN R ERG I
including any executive or non-executive director of fH7g o
the Group.

(iif) Maximum number of shares (i) R1PEE IR
The limit on the total number of shares which may R ETR R AEERTRKE
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options NEZ A E R s R B W
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme BETE IS R TE R
and any other share option schemes of any member TEBET 7 IR BEREE - a]
of the Group must not exceed 30 per cent. of the B DTGB E30% R
number of issued shares from time to time. The AR AH - RIEEIRESTEIA T
total number of shares available for issue under the 1T 7 D BB 594,164,4300% -
Scheme as at the date of this report is 94,164,430 HERE BARDTEEITIRA L
shares, representing approximately 2.13 per cent. of 2.13% °
the issued share capital of the Company as of that
date.

(iv)  Maximum entitlement of each Participant (i) s 2EE A EE R R
Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting, RS SRR B oA FHEESN - il
no Participant shall be granted an option which R2EENTEEEDERTRE
would result in the total number of shares issued EEFHERE(REDTE B
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted RN ARITENERE)Z B
and to be granted (including options exercised, SHERNEE L AOIEEZEE LER
cancelled and outstanding) to such Participant in any A F+ @R BN D ERT
12-month period up to and including the proposed B AR 1T 7 IR D & B fBm i s 157
date of grant for such options would exceed 1 per HEZ R EE A BTROHE 2
cent. of the number of shares in issue as at the 1% » B REMmzZREE R ER
proposed date of grant. FE o

(v)  Option period ) BBRIEEIR
An option may be exercised in accordance with the T {n] B B AE 5 AT N & B f i R
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period of AFETRBE 14 7 BAFR N T {a] B S
not exceeding 10 years to be notified by the Board BRI Bl 2 G FLATTE -
to the grantee, such period to commence on the ZEREAMR IS AR H Bi sk E =
date of grant or such later date as the Board may B FE 2 EZ BHEIRRE - WK ER
determine and expiring on the last day of the said Bk — B o IBIEEIRES
period. Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its 2 BERIBSET THEIREET
discretion, prescribe a minimum period for which an FRIBREE 2 e R -

option must be held before it can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

() Summary of terms of the Scheme (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the
options to be granted under the Scheme will be
a price determined by the Board and notified to
a Participant at the time the grant of the options
is made to (and subject to acceptance by) the
Participant and will be at least the highest of: (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the option,
which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

(viii) The life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on 6 June 2002, after
which period no further options will be granted or
accepted but the provisions of the Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

() No options had been granted, exercised nor cancelled
since the adoption of the Scheme on 6 June 2002.
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DIRECTORS EE

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the AATRAEENERARERTEEILIZE

date of this report were: EEFAAT
Executive Directors: MITEE
Mr. CHAN Shing BRI 5 A
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BB E
Mr. YANG Dawei BARERE
Ms. LAU Ting it
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia Rl
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam BEREE
Mr. YIN Mark FaT S A
Mr. SHAM Kai Man SR E
— appointed on 20 July 2009 —RZEBEENFEA-+THZE
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIERTEE:
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EEREE
Mr. MIAO Gengshu EMELE
Mr. HUANG Shenglan HEBELRE
Non-Executive Director: JEBITESE :
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael B A

In accordance with bye-laws 85 & 92 of the Bye-laws of the KRN T 2 ERMMANE-S K2 EZRE
Company, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Mr. YANG Dawei, Mr. SHAM BRSNS E BABLELE  BERNEERE
Kai Man and Mr. HUANG Shenglan shall retire from office at BFELAEREERTIBRERAFEFAS £
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, R WNEHEEBIRET -

offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set RN EEEFESNEIIEERE14E
out on pages 11 to 14.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company (including
those interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have interests and short positions under the
provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

(A) The Company

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EFRITHERMNEMG - HEAKGR R
SEPHEANERRAE

WZZEZNE+-_A=+—8 REAQT
RREFESLAEGO(TEFRABGRMN])E
ISHEFTRTE AT HEENERMATHE - ik
BEMARESHITESRZMIRESTRE
MARNBREBBHEZHABR AR ([HR
FTl)  ARBSES RITHEHN AR A
HAEHE AR (Ex L ESLRPEEMIEXY
OB ARG REFHEP A SIZRE
FRBERNEEAREENESRAR  #F
BT ¢

B3 R HERRAR 17 1
(A) A2A]

Approximate

LERRORERRABE percentage
interest in the
Company'’s
Personal Family Corporate issued share
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total capital
PEELT
ERTRF
EEgtR BAER RiEHR LKEER | Biflt
CHAN Shing 106,398,521(L) 104,042,601(L)  1,729,266,037(L)  1,939,707,159(L) 56.68%(L)
R (Note 1) 1,406,427,301(S)  1,406,427,301(S) 41.10%(S)
(Hfit1) (Notes 2 & 3) (Note 3)
(Hi2%3) (§15t3)
SIT Hoi Tung 4,413,869(L) - - 4,413,869(L) 0.13%(L)
HER
LAU Ting 104,042,601(L) 106,398,521(L)  1,729,266,037(L)  1,939,707,159(L) 56.68%(L)
e (Note 4) 1,406,427,301(S)  1,406,427,301(S) 41.10%(S)
(Hy7t4) (Notes 2 & 3) (Note 3)
(Wzt2R3) (H1it3)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 21,725,226(L) 110,000(L) 7,104,000(L) 28,939,226(L) 0.85%(L)
ki) (Note 5)
(Hits)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

(A) The Company (continued)

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr.
CHAN Shing.

2. 1,290,961,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory
Add”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (a
company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and
Ms. LAU Ting). 226,403,853 shares were held by Hang Sing
Overseas Limited (“Hang Sing”) which is owned as to 51%
by Orient Strength Limited (“Orient Strength”), a company
which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.
211,900,848 shares were held by Strong Purpose Corporation
(“Strong Purpose”), a company which is wholly-owned by Mr.
CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.

3. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU
Ting are deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures
referred to the same shares.

4. These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of
Ms. LAU Ting.

5. 7,104,000 shares were owned by Focus Cheer Consultants
Limited (“Focus Cheer”), a company which is wholly-owned by
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

6.  The letter “L" denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

EFRITHERMNEMG - HEAKGR R

SEh

AR RREE)

B iR BRI S (Z)

A) AR
Hifat
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WSR2

1,290,961,336 [ 1 (R i 5 4 & 2 18 &
+ %2 & #% A f Favor King Limited i& i@
H2&¥% B 22 A Glory Add Limited
(T Glory Add |) % & - 226,403,853 fiX
fiHang Sing Overseas Limited ([ Hang
SingJ) #7A - Orient Strength Limited
([Orient Strengthl)#AHang Sing 51%
o MRS EERBE L TAIZERSE
Orient Strength ° 211,900,848/% FiStrong
Purpose Corporation([ Strong Purpose J)#¥
B BRIk L REBIIE L2 EPEAStrong

Purpose °
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND EERITREHMVEN - HEBRORE

SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES SEDhEFHIEERKEZ)
AND DEBENTURES (continued)
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued) B RIEERREE ()

(B) Associated Corporation — China LotSynergy Holdings (B) Hf&Zm]—China LotSynergy Holdings
Limited (“China LotSynergy”) Limited (ZZ12RERAF) ([EF1E
8J)

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares Approximate

LERRORERRABE percentage
interest in the
issued share
Personal Corporate capital of China
Name of Director Interests  Family Interests Interests Total LotSynergy
PIEER AR
BRTRF
EEE EBAES RiE#S LEES A Bitlt
CHAN Shing 343,807,092(L) 215,555,212(L)  1,629,617,232(L)  2,188,979,536(L) 29.57%(L)
FeR38 (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) 23,093,192(S) 23,093,192(5) 0.31%(S)
(#iz1) (Hrat1k2) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Hit3%4) (Hist4)
SIT Hoi Tung 11,115,276(L) - - 11,115,276(L) 0.15%(L)
EER
LAU Ting 215,555,212(L) 343,807,092(L)  1,629,617,232(L)  2,188,979,536(L) 29.57%(L)
s (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 5) 23,093,192(S) 23,093,192(S) 0.31%(S)
(#iz1) (Hrat1k5) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Hit3%4) (Hist4)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 8,454,440(L) 22,000(L) 1,020,800(L) 9,497,240(L) 0.13%(L)
ki) (Note 6)
(Hizte)
KWOK Wai Lam 8,800,000(L) - - 8,800,000(L) 0.12%(L)
PER
YIN Mark 4,067,600(L) - - 4,067,600(L) 0.05%(L)
Fir
SHAM Kai Man 6,000,000(L) - - 6,000,000(L) 0.08%(L)
ZRX (Note 7)
(H15t7)
HUANG Shenglan 6,400,000(L) - - 6,400,000(L) 0.09%(L)
BHE (Note 1)
(Hizt1)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

(B) Associated Corporation — China LotSynergy (continued)

Notes:

1. Among these interests, 2,400,000 underlying shares were
share options.

2. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr.
CHAN Shing.

3. 45,280,768 shares were held by Hang Sing which is owned as
to 51% by Orient Strength, a company which is wholly-owned
by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. 42,380,168 shares
were held by Strong Purpose, a company which is wholly-
owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. 1,535,324,296
shares were held directly by the Company and 6,632,000
shares were held by Hillot Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Burwill HK Portfolio Limited which is in turn wholly-owned
by the Company.

4. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU
Ting are deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures
referred to the same shares.

5.  These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of
Ms. LAU Ting.

6.  These shares were owned by Focus Cheer, a company which is
wholly-owned by Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

7. These underlying shares were share options.

8.  The letter “L"” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had,
or were deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

EFERTHERMNEG - HRAKMRE
FEPHEANERRKE(E)

BiR R ARG HEE(Z)
(B) BERA—EFRER (B)
Brat -

1. IWEEZSE A 2,400,000/% 48 B8 A% 17 B FE A
#E o

2. WEHGHIELLIER - FEZLRR
WSR2

3. 45,280,768 FiHang Sing#f A& - Orient
Strength#¥ A Hang Sing 51% # 2 +
BRI St & K Blig 2+ B 2 A #E B Orient
Strength © 42,380,168 Strong Purpose
BE BREERBEBLTEZEREB
Strong Purpose ° 1,535,324,296 % h 7K
NRIEEFA © 6,632,000 % B Burwill
HK Portfolio LimitedZ & #4 Z A a]Hillot
Limited $5% * MR AR 2 & FEABurwill
HK Portfolio Limited ©

4. BRBREEERBIEZLZ BRFRAK
IbE e - MPRFIBF AR AL -

5. WEHERDHRMELEER - RMELERE
Bt 2 e e

6. WEBROKBEMMELT2EREZAA
Focus CheeriF & °

7. UEERRERDBEAE -

8. [LIRRIAE : [SIRTAR °

BREXFEEEN R-FTTAF+ A
=t—H  ARAZEFHTHRAHBER
ARRHEEABEAR(ERRFEFMPE
fERGIEXVER) 2 Btn - MERERD R IE 778 T
BRIERESMEGROIRR SR A2
T IOR B LB IR IR I S B (1 55 352 1%
FIRERBEZELMA - HAMKE LT
NEEFETESFRZNEETABAAR
G ¥
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT FERFERBMREBEM DRSS
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES BRkE

As at 31 December 2009, according to the register required R-BEENE+—_A=+—H  BEAXALF
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, JRRREE R EEETE3361&FTIREE T HEF
the following persons (other than the Directors and chief ZEEMEE  UWTAT(RATEERITH

executive of the Company) had interests and short positions WER AN AR D FIIRD KRB RE PR b A ke

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company: HRKE
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares B RIEERGIES
Approximate
Number of percentage
ordinary interest in
shares & the Company’s
Nature of underlying issued share
Name of shareholder interest shares capital Note
HihFE LT
HERBRIAR ERITERE
BREE HaNE HRARR D B E Bipkt it
Favor King Limited Corporate 1,290,961,336(L) 37.72% 1
NS 1,290,961,336(S) 37.72%
Hang Sing Beneficiary 226,403,853(L) 6.62% 2
BN 115,465,965(S) 3.37%
Orient Strength Corporate 226,403,853(L) 6.62% 2
NG 115,465,965(S) 3.37%
Zhong Shan Company Limited Corporate 226,403,853(L) 6.62% 2
EILBRAT NGl 115,465,965(S) 3.37%
Superior Quality Assets Limited Corporate 226,403,853(L) 6.62% 2
NS 115,465,965(S) 3.37%
Strong Purpose Beneficiary 211,900,848(L) 6.19% 3
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-
owned by Favor King Limited. Favor King Limited is owned as to
50% by Mr. CHAN Shing and as to 50% by Ms. LAU Ting.

2. 51% of the issued share capital of Hang Sing was owned by Orient
Strength, a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting, and 49% of the issued share capital of Hang
Sing was owned by Superior Quality Assets Limited, a company
which is wholly-owned by Zhong Shan Company Limited. Zhong
Shan Company Limited was wholly-owned by the Jiangsu Provincial
People’s Government of the PRC. These 226,403,853 shares held by
Hang Sing formed part of the interests of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms.
LAU Ting as disclosed herein.

3. These interests were held by Strong Purpose, a company which is
wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting, formed part
of the interests of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting as disclosed
herein.

4. The letter “L” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
and/or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

FERRREGRERKRGRERNE
aRiRkBE(E)

B iR BRI S (Z)
Bt -

1. ST HEFavor King Limited2E A ZAF]
Glory Add##& ° Favor King Limited 5l g1 BR ¥,
FERBELTEEEAES0%ER ©

2. Hang SingZ51%B /TR AN Ty Bk 2 & K 2
B2 & #A Z0rient StrengthFTA » BN
Hang SingZ49% B2 TR ARIREIL AR A A
2 &8 ZSuperior Quality Assets LimitedFf#
A BUARRARNFREIHEARKTZEH
B 2A7] ° Hang Sing#§8 2 226,403,853 T34
ST IR BRI e B fE e+ 2 MRS 2 — 3D

1/\ o

3. HEEEHERLEREELTE2ERAZ
Strong PurposefT#FA + AN Bl FERR I
SERBEZ L 2w —E5 o

4. [LIRTHE  [SIRTRAE -

BREXFHBEEEN R_TTAF+_H
=t+—8  BEEAAL(RAREEHTH
RERR SN R R B R ABRE R R B 1
T IOR B FCE IR IR I S A B {5 (1 55 336 1%
PIFEMELTMA - &/ REEIEEMRE
BEBITIRAHERNS% A FiEs - WA
TEABERT - AREAREEAEMKER
AR A S LI R o

I 26 Annual Report 2009 4 iy |



Report of Directors & £ B %

PLACING
2009 Placement

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the
Company and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
on 21 October 2009 (the “2009 Placing Agreement”), the
Company allotted and issued a total of 310,000,000 new
shares of the Company on 30 October 2009 to at least six
independent investors at a placing price of HK$0.35 per
share. The closing price per share on 20 October 2009, being
the last trading day before the entering into the 2009 Placing
Agreement, as quoted on the Stock Exchange was HK$0.385.
A net proceeds of approximately HK$106.9 million raised was
used as general working capital as well as for investments in
natural mineral resources and related business.

2010 Private Placement

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the
Company and UBS AG, Hong Kong Branch on 11 March 2010
(the 2010 Placing Agreement”), the Company allotted and
issued a total of 307,380,000 new shares of the Company
on 16 March 2010 to at least six independent investors at a
placing price of HK$0.605 per share. The closing price per
share on 10 March 2010, being the last trading day before
the entering into the 2010 Placing Agreement, as quoted
on the Stock Exchange was HK$0.72. A net proceeds of
approximately HK$184 million raised was used to replenish
the general working capital requirements of the Company.

The aggregate of 617,380,000 placing shares were allotted
and issued under the general mandate granted to the
Directors of the Company by its shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 9 June 2009.

=2
—EENARE

BRERAAREERELES (BB BRAR
R-ZEZEAE+A -+ —HIIuZEE S
(ZZ2EZNEEWZE])  ARFRERZZZE
NF+A=+HEERISETHEEER
% N B 174 $£310,000,000 A% 7 A &) 1 #E T
PLORANEEIUIBESE - RZZETZNF+A
ZHAEGRTIZZET NSRRI ZRER
2 BB R TR T E AT A0.3858 7T © BT
BRIEFELN1.069BETLAE—REEES
MAFENRATEEE R MAREET -

—2-PUBES

RBEARRHIGIRFERITEBSITRZ
—BE=f+—HivEERE( T —
TRERZE])  ARFER T —TF=A
TN B &M0.6058 LB S B R 3 K 31T
& 307,380,000 % R A R FT R T DR
BN EE - N T —TF A+ H(AIE]
VR -ERERFAIZRER S )BT
HRTEAEIK0.728TT - FIBHIAEFHEYD
184 BB LA NEAARRR —REEBEESH

FEEE .
BEE=S

£ $£617,380,000 % Bl S [% 10 THiR KRR B A —
EENFARANBRITZAQRBREBRF KR
G ERTEE 2 —RIERERCE BT -

I Annual Report 2009 3R 27



Report of Directors & £ B %

MAJOR TRANSACTION - ACQUISITION OF MAGNETITE
IRON ORE MINING BUSINESSES IN THE PRC

Burwill Minerals Limited (“Burwill Minerals”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, respectively entered
into the Share Purchase Agreement with Tai Xin Investment
Limited on 5 November 2009 and the Supplemental Share
Purchase Agreement with Tai Xin Investment Limited and Tai
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) on 24 December 2009
for acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital of Tai Xin
Minerals Limited (“Tai Xin Minerals”), which indirectly owns
an extraordinarily large magnetite iron mine in Laiyang City,
Shandong Province, PRC and holds a mining license tenement
and four exploration licenses tenements covering in aggregate
an area of approximately 21 sg. km., at a total consideration
of HK$500,000,000, which was satisfied by the payment of
HK$260,000,000 in cash and the issue of 685,700,000 new
shares of the Company to the Vendor (the “Acquisition”).
Burwill Minerals further entered into the Call Option
Agreement with the Vendor and Tai Xin Minerals on 22
January 2010 whereby Tai Xin Minerals granted a call option
in favour of Burwill Minerals to acquire new shares of Tai Xin
Minerals at an additional consideration of HK$259,000,000,
to be paid on a one-off basis, to the effect that Burwill
Minerals shall own not less than 70% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Tai Xin Minerals (the “Call Option”). Both
the Acquisition and the Call Option were approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 12 February 2010. Completion of the
Acquisition took place on 31 March 2010 and thereafter Tai
Xin Minerals has become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

The Acquisition constituted a major transaction for the
Company under the rules governing the listing of securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), details of the
transaction were set out in the Company’s circular dated 27
January 2010.

Having always been proactive in seeking opportunities to
integrate upwards in the steel business so as to increase
synergies and enhance efficiency for the Group, the Directors
believed that the Acquisition represented an opportunity by
integrating the Company’s traditional trading businesses that
are safe and stable with upper stream exploration and mining
business which generate higher margin. Main investment
highlights of the Acquisition were as follows:

—  Strong fundamentals of the China iron ore and steel
sectors

5

FE R/ H — W o B R T 3 3

KRR EMNBRAERBEBRAR(E
BEEX]D DR -_ETNF+—AAAH
Tai Xin Investment Limiteds] S IRID B =17
BEERZZZAF+ A=+ MEHEHETai Xin
Investment Limited A2Tai Xin Holdings Limited
(TERFDFILEaBRNEEHBE - NKE
Tai Xin Minerals Limited([ Tai Xin Minerals])
(ERFRILREARKETEARZEES —
BARMERE  $8 —EAFRETUEEE
MEUESHKRTIEEE  BEEEAS LY
T+ —FARBE)EETRAS1% BREA
500,000,000/ 7T * #5374 260,000,000 & 7T
LA 1% 3£17685,700,000 & R A FIFTAR T & 5 2
R(TUEE]D) - ERIRE#E—TIN T —FF
—AZ+=HEE A K&Tai Xin Mineralsz 373
A& iR 0 TEUt 0 Tai Xin Minerals2 [A1E&
BIEERHRRGEEE  BREXERE X
M SNE £ R {8259,000,000 IR ETai
Xin Minerals¥Ti% - BUE EREEMEATai Xin
Minerals#&#E A B 1 TAR AT D18 70% ([ 528%
EEE] WEERREEECENR-_Z-F
FZRA+TZABRTZARAIREEFIRE L
BARRNGRRILERBR WHEEN_Z—F
F=A=+—H5K ' &It ' Tai Xin Minerals
RAEARNBFEZEMBAT -

RIREE R P EMAAI EDRAD - Ik
BEBRALRFRZERRS  HFHBEIER
—EF-TF AT EAXRDQEBK

BEE-BHRISRESES DFMBEER
ARAEBIE NG RBERRSRE - BE
WEER —AREEEFARALZE2REN
BEEFEBRELTSER WM EFEY
RERBEGES - WBZTEZREHRZW
T~

—  PEEEREETREZREER
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MAJOR TRANSACTION - ACQUISITION OF MAGNETITE
IRON ORE MINING BUSINESSES IN THE PRC (continued)

—  Large mineral resource base of the mine, its relatively
high iron content which enables the production of a
premium product

—  Low cost structure
—  Fast production growth profile

—  Strong track record of the management team of Tai Xin
Minerals” Group

The Directors expected that the Acquisition was an important
step for the Group to secure resources for its trading business
and build an integrated steel and steel raw materials trading,
and processing platform. By leveraging on the Company’s
years of experience and expertise, it would be well positioned
to manage the extension of its steel business from traditional
steel trading and steel processing to resources exploration and
development.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES HELD IN A LISTED ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

On 15 December 2009, the Board of Directors of the
Company resolved to put forward to the shareholders of the
Company a proposal to make a distribution out of contributed
surplus of the Company to its shareholders (the “Distribution”)
wholly by the distribution of up to 1,540,025,856 ordinary
shares of HK$0.0025 each in China LotSynergy Holdings
Limited (the “CLS Shares”) on the basis of 9 CLS Shares for
every 20 ordinary shares of the Company held on the record
date (i.e. 21 January 2010).

The Distribution was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 21 January 2010 and certificates for the 1,540,023,984
CLS Shares, which represented 99.9% of the CLS Shares held
by the Company before the Distribution, were duly dispatched
to those entitled shareholders of the Company on 3 February
2010.

Details of the Distribution were set out in the Company’s
circular dated 29 December 2009.

FEXH - BMPEEEWmRS 2

- BERABBWERER BESREH
& AJAEEEEEM
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EEHEUBERUNEASEBRAERZ ¥
R ERAETTE 5555 K27 8 5 R
HEBRNTZHEEFE - BEARRNS
FRBMEXNH - O EEHAE KRR
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Sk LHBE QTG
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DIR(TDR]) ZEBTRERR  ZHIK
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LotSynergy Holdings Limited (ZE4E B R A
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DRI REFNARG EEAQ B RELER
iB 0 1M 1,540,023,984 8% = Rk 15 (15 AR A &)
R IRBIFT A ER I 299.9% ) 2 FRZE IR
BER - ZEF_A=—HHETARQAAAE
DIRENEZ IR -

DIRFFBEVEHR -_ZEENF T+ A=+
HARRXBBEK -

I Annual Report 2009 3R 29 I



Report of Directors & £ B %

REDUCTION OF SHARE PREMIUM

At the special general meeting of the Company held on
21 January 2010, a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders of the Company to reduce the share premium
account of the Company (as at the date of the passing of such
resolution) to nil (the “Share Premium Reduction”). The credit
arising from the Share Premium Reduction of approximately
HK$738.2 million was transferred to the contributed surplus
of the Company for the purpose of making a distribution of
1,540,023,984 ordinary shares of China LotSynergy Holdings
Limited to shareholders of the Company on 27 January 2010.

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$380,000,000 divided into 3,800,000,000 shares to
HK$680,000,000 divided into 6,800,000,000 shares, which
was passed as an ordinary resolution by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 12
February 2010.

OTHER INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

On 1 February 2010, the annual salaries of each of Mr. CHAN
Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Ms. LAU Ting, Ms. TUNG Pui Shan,
Virginia, Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, Mr. YIN Mark and Mr. SHAM
Kai Man were increased by approximately 5%. The annual
directors’ fees of Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. SZE Tsai
Ping, Michael were revised to HK$300,000 and HK$156,000
respectively.

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael resigned as an Independent Non-
Executive director of C Y Foundation Group Limited with
effect from 3 November 2009 and ceased to be a Member of
the Disciplinary Appeals Committee of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company
disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

R B {7 iR (R AR
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SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company with no specific
term of office or for an initial term of two years (subject to
individual contract) from the date of appointment and will
continue thereafter, until terminated by not less than one to
six months (subject to individual contract) notice in writing
served by either party on the other. The terms of office of
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors are the period up to their retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors offering
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
there was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note 15
of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules) in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any of the Company’s Directors or
members of its management had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and
the employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 156.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises the three Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Company, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. MIAO Gengshu and Mr.
HUANG Shenglan. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng will retire and a resolution for

their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
is an essential element in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, business partners and
the community as a whole and also the performance of the
Group. The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
will review the corporate governance structure and practices
from time to time and shall make necessary arrangements to
ensure business activities and decision making processes are
made in a proper and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2009, except for the
deviations as disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Sit Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Yang Dawei

Ms. Lau Ting

Ms. Tung Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. Kwok Wai Lam

Mr. Yin Mark

Mr. Sham Kai Man (appointed on 20 July 2009)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Shu Ming
Mr. Miao Gengshu
Mr. Huang Shenglan

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised twelve
Directors, eight of whom are Executive Directors (including
the Chairman), three of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one of whom is Non-Executive Director. Details
of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of
this annual report. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal actions against the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.
Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The day-to-
day running of the Company is delegated to the management
with department heads responsible for different aspects of
the businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company is independent in character
and judgement. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-Executive Director a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group’s business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All
regular board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board
to make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the board meetings. Minutes of board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board except that Ms. Lau Ting is the spouse of Mr. Chan
Shing.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of directors entitled
to be present. As the Company did not announce its quarterly
results, two regular board meetings were held during the year
for reviewing and approving the interim and annual financial
performance of the Group, which did not fully comply with
the relevant Code provision. Board meetings will be held on
other occasions when board decisions are required.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year under review, twelve board meetings
(including two regular board meetings) were held. Details of

the attendance of the Directors are as follows:—

Executive Directors

MITES

Mr. Chan Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
BRYR ST A (LB F 2 F AT )

Mr. Sit Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)
B RSt (BI#BACE)

Mr. Yang Dawei

BRESE

Ms. Lau Ting

B+

Ms. Tung Pui Shan, Virginia

EXEEem

Mr. Kwok Wai Lam

BEHREE

Mr. Yin Mark

FT

Mr. Sham Kai Man

SRCEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIUFMTEE

Mr. Cui Shu Ming
EERLE

Mr. Miao Gengshu
EH#ELRE

Mr. Huang Shenglan
ERBELE

Non-Executive Director

FRITES

Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael
RBFSE

ESR#E)

REER  BEZRABT TR (BEM
REHEH) - EFZHEREFBOT

Directors’ Attendance

EEHERE

12/12
12/12

0/12

6/12
12/12
12/12
10/12

777

2/12
1712

3/12

1712
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer were
not performed by separate individuals as is stipulated in Code
provision A.2.1. The Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company, Mr. Chan Shing, currently assumes the role of the
chairman and also the chief executive officer responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies of and organising the implementation structure for
the Company and also managing the Group’s overall business
operations. Given the nature of the Group’s businesses which
require considerable market expertise, the Board believed
that the vesting of the two roles provides the Group with
stable and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
planning and implementation of long term business strategies.
The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of the
structure to balance the power and authority of the Board
and the management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term as is stipulated in Code provision
A.4.1, but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The
Directors have not been required by the Bye-laws to retire
by rotation at least once every three years. However, in
accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director. The Board will ensure the
retirement of each Director, other than the one who holds
the office as Chairman or Managing Director, by rotation at
least once every three years in order to comply with Code
provisions. The Chairman will not be subject to retirement by
rotation as is stipulated in Code provision A.4.2, as the Board
considered that the continuity of office of the Chairman
provides the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is
of great importance to the smooth operations of the Group.
Mr. Sit Hoi Tung, Mr. Yang Dawei, Mr. Sham Kai Man and
Mr. Huang Shenglan are subject to retirement by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-laws.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, Mr. Cui Shu Ming,
Mr. Huang Shenglan and Mr. Sit Hoi Tung. The chairman
of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Cui Shu Ming. The
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
the senior management, and consider and review the terms of
service contracts of the Directors and the senior management.

In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the
Remuneration Committee took into consideration factors
such as time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
abilities, performance and contribution of the Directors to
the Group, the performance and profitability of the Group,
the remuneration benchmark in the industry, the prevailing
market/employment conditions and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held
during the year ended 31 December 2009. Details of the
attendance of the Remuneration Committee Meeting are as
follows:

Mr. Cui Shu Ming (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
EERAREFNZE2L/E)

Mr. Huang Shenglan

BEBERE

Mr. Sit Hoi Tung

EBRESE

FHERE

ARBR-ZZEZRFAAT-_BRIZARR
ERXEEBENGFHEZES  FNEZES
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a director, and approving and terminating
the appointment of a director. During the year under review,
the Company had not established a nomination committee
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and duties. The Chairman is mainly responsible
for identifying suitable candidates for members of the Board
when there is a vacancy or an additional director is considered
necessary. The Chairman will propose the appointment of
such candidates to the Board for consideration and the Board
will review the qualifications of the relevant candidates for
determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his
qualifications, experience and background.

During the year under review, one meeting of the Board
regarding the appointment of Mr. Sham Kai Man as an
Executive Director of the Company was held. Details of the
attendance of the meeting is as follows:

Executive Directors

BOESE

Mr. Chan Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
BRI SE A (LB REFRATE)

Mr. Sit Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)
BBR A (FlBErE)

Mr. Yang Dawei

BAREEE

Ms. Lau Ting

Bt

Ms. Tung Pui Shan, Virginia

Bzt

Mr. Kwok Wai Lam

PR

Mr. Yin Mark

FU A

Mr. Sham Kai Man

SR A

ESRS
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIUFMTEE

Mr. Cui Shu Ming
EERLLE

Mr. Miao Gengshu
EH#ELRE

Mr. Huang Shenglan
ERBELE

Non-Executive Director

FRITES

Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael
LBFSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides
the Board with advice and recommendations. As at the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, Mr. Cui Shu Ming, Mr. Miao Gengshu and Mr.
Huang Shenglan. All of them are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Cui
Shu Ming. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has broad commercial experience and there is a
suitable mix of expertise in business, accounting and financial
management in the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s functions includes:

e to review and monitor financial reporting and the
reporting judgement contained in them; and

e to review financial and internal controls, accounting
policies and practices with management, internal and
external auditors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
under review, one of which was attended by the external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

Mr. Cui Shu Ming EEREE
Mr. Miao Gengshu EHELE
Mr. Huang Shenglan EBELE

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee has been posted on the Company’s
website and is made available on request.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had
engaged the Group’s external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng, to provide the following services and their fees
charged are set out below:

Types of Services RRISXERY
Audit of consolidated financial EEFEHEEYERE
statement of the Group EET
for the year
Non-audit services FEEET RS
- Acting as reporting accountants — R ETAM LA
to report on financial information ER AR
included in investment circulars IR R AIRE
issued by the Company A

FRERE ()

BERZEERFEARBITRMAGH  IME
TEMBEEEAMEEAELERES —RE
@ BRZBEgRIHEREFBIT

Members’ Attendance

EEHFERB

2/2
1/2
2/2
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Fee Charged
for the year ended
31 December
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- 200,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and
the responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders
are set out on pages 43 and 44.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, to identify and manage potential risk. The Board
is committed to implement an effective and sound internal
control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. The Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of the system of internal
controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain an open and effective
investor relations policy and to update investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings
with institutional investors and analysts are conducted from
time to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
shareholders timely. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The corporate website of the Company has provided a
communication platform via which the public and investor
community can access to up-to-date information regarding
the Group.
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HLB M &t m F BN
Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 45 to 154, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 April 2010
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Balance Sheets EERERX
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEEAE+=_A=+—8H
Consolidated Company
w8 27
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt ERTRT BETT ERTT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land HELRLH
use rights FRE 6 77,768 79,416 - -
Property, plant and equipment ERE TS 7 89,481 99,258 = =
Investment properties REME 8 601,018 522,726 - =
Intangible assets BYEE - 150 - -
Investments in subsidiaries B ARKRE 9 - = 42,415 42,415
Due from subsidiaries B ARK 9 - - 131,000 462,474
Investments in associates BENARE 10 257,606 271,334 10,766 10,766
Available-for-sale financial assets  A[{tHHEB A E 12 1,509 1,509 90 90
Prepayments and other BRRREBRE
receivables Wk 15 156,342 537 - -
Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHEE 20 23,136 20,054 - =
Total non-current assets BIERHEE 1,206,860 994,984 184,271 515,745
Current assets mEEE
Inventories e 13 119,895 162,574 - -
Financial assets at fair value BERATEABRER
through profit or loss FRE BT R E E 14 12,610 40,195 1 1
Bills and accounts receivable B EE R EURIREIE 15 1,075,523 973,906 - -
Deposits, prepayments and & BRHK
other receivables HY BN 15 387,301 127,863 484 432
Due from subsidiaries i=NEIVEN 9 = - 1,038,988 637,716
Due from associates NI 10 2,262 2,527 - =
Income tax refundable EEEEr= 190 139 190 =
Cash and bank balances Re RBTHER 16 293,639 361,849 15,763 765
Total current assets BnEEE 1,891,420 1,669,053 1,055,426 638,914
Total assets HEE 3,098,280 2,664,037 1,239,697 1,154,659
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Balance Sheets
At 31 December 2009

ERER
TEAF+-A=+—8

/tg A/
I
A
4

Consolidated Company
e 27
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hizt BETT BT BETT BETT
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners ARAIEREFEA
of the parent [l
Share capital PR A 17 342,228 311,228 342,228 311,228
Other reserves He s 18 841,997 761,931 879,151 803,408
Retained profits RERF 18 286,723 291,369 4,799 12,877
1,470,948 1,364,528 1,226,178 1,127,513
Minority interests DERRERER 117,103 104,793 - =
Total equity B 1,588,051 1,469,321 1,226,178 1,127,513
LIABILITIES RfE
Non-current liabilities FrRBAR
Borrowings BX 19 392,032 153,423 = =
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFEHAR 20 101,632 91,122 - -
Total non-current liabilities BERBAE 493,664 244,545 - -
Current liabilities bid 1=K
Borrowings BX 19 567,124 443,849 = =
Due to subsidiaries UG 9 - - 10,464 24,962
Due to associates N AUNTE ] 10 24,079 24,301 - -
Bills and accounts payable EREEREMIRE 21 359,049 335,897 - =
Other payables and HEEMIRER
accruals &R 65,598 125,841 3,055 2,184
Income tax payable FERTFTEH 715 20,283 - -
Total current liabilities EREEE 1,016,565 950,171 13,519 27,146
Total liabilities BEE 1,510,229 1,194,716 13,519 27,146
Total equity and liabilities BREERAR 3,098,280 2,664,037 1,239,697 1,154,659
Net current assets nERERE 874,855 718,882 1,041,907 611,768
Total assets less current HEER
liabilities mBERE 2,081,715 1,713,866 1,226,178 1,127,513
CHAN SHING KWOK WAI LAM
PR BES
Chairman Director
= EZE
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Consolidated Income Statement #:4& Bz &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HILEFE
2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt BETT BT T
Sales HE 5 3,256,714 8,334,596
Cost of sales SHE A 23 (3,158,960) (8,111,375)
Gross profit ESV| 97,754 223,221
Other gains, net Hula 55 22 84,443 141,721
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEEHR 23 (44,168) (71,585)
General and administrative expenses —#% & 17 & A 23 (70,802) (77,810)
Operating profit 1B B R 67,227 215,547
Finance costs B & k2R 25 (28,230) (54,007)
Share of losses of associates PTG Bt 22 2 B 5 48 10 (18,932) (196,866)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax & BT 1580 Al
BF,/(E8) 20,065 (35,326)
Income tax expense T8 %% 26 (12,401) (69,577)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERF,(FEiE) 7,664 (104,903)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: &aBF,/(BE)FBR
Equity holders of the Company RNATIESEFEERA 27 (4,646) (148,808)
Minority interests VAR R 12,310 43,905
7,664 (104,903)
Loss per share attributable to FERRNN TR
equity holders of A ARG
the Company during the year T EE 28
— basic and diluted —EAR NS (0.15) HK centi&fll (8.50) HK centsi 1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %34 2 H B

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HILEFE
2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
izt BETT BT T
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEAF,(BE) 7,664 (104,903)
Other comprehensive income: EE2mEA :
Share of other comprehensive FribitE RalEE
income of associates 2HE A 18 2,980 5,884
Currency translation differences  S¥[E H =% 18 (881) 23,934
Other comprehensive income FEECZEBA -
for the year, net of tax MR IE 2,099 29,818

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEZ2HEW A (Eig)

for the year 4B FE 9,763 (75,085)
Attributable to: SFER
Equity holders of the Company KAREZFEA (2,547) (123,584)
Minority interests DB R R 12,310 48,499

Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEZ2mEU A (Ei8)
for the year Fk] 9,763 (75,085)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4 & s Z B XK
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZTNFF+_A=+—HILEFE
Attributable to equity
holders of the Company
ADAERFEAES
Share Other Retained Minority Total
capital reserves profits interests equity
PHIRE
kx  HeREe REERN s Bl

Note ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
At BRI ARt BBt A%Tt  ABTR

Balance at 1 January 2008 “ZENF-A—B#H 111,213 644,300 440,237 56,218 1,251,968
Comprehensive income ZEEA
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(ER) /BT - - (148,808) 43,905  (104,903)
Other comprehensive income: HEe2mEBA;
Share of other comprehensive FritEE AREE

income of associates EELON 18 = 5,884 = = 5,884
Currency translation differences ~ SH#[E N =5 18 = 19,340 = 4,594 23,934
Total other comprehensive income  EE2EUALEE = 25,224 = 4,594 29,818
Total comprehensive income/(loss) Z2EWA /(B8 ) A58 - 25224  (148,808) 48,499 (75,085
Repurchase of shares SRR 18 (60) (246) (60) - (366)
Issue of shares BT AR 18 200,075 100,038 = = 300,113
Share issue expenses RINETHRE 18 - (10,054) - - (10,054)
Capital injection from PHRREA

minority shareholder A - - - 76 76
Share of other reserves FT{i B & A 7]

of associates HERE 18 = 2,669 = = 2,669
Balance at 31 December 2008 —EZN\E+=H

=+—B#&% 311,228 761,931 291,369 104,793 1,469,321
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4 & s Z B XK
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZTNFF+_A=+—HILEFE

Attributable to equity

holders of the Company

ENTHRBHEARS

Share Other  Retained  Minority Total
capital  reserves profits  interests equity

PHBRE
k& HERRE HERTY o L2
Note  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Az EBTR  BWTRT  BRTR  EWTR  BRTR

Balance at 1 January 2009 “ETNF—A—B&H 311,228 761,931 291,369 104,793 1,469,321
Comprehensive income 2EBA
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(ER) /BT - - (4,646) 12,310 7,664
Other comprehensive income: HE2EHBA:
Share of other comprehensive FritEE AREE

income of associates EELON 18 - 2,980 - - 2,980
Currency translation differences ~ E#¥EN =5 18 - (881) - - (881)
Total other comprehensive income  EE2EUALEE - 2,099 - - 2,099
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ZEWA /(E18) &% - 2,099 (4,646) 12,310 9,763
Issue of shares EIRM 18 31,000 77,500 - - 108,500
Share issue expenses RDEETRY 18 - (1,757) - - (1,757)
Share of other reserves Fﬁf NG

of associates Hof#E 18 - 2,224 = = 2,224
Balance at 31 December 2009 —EENE+ZR

=t+—B#&# 342,228 841,997 286,723 117,103 1,588,051
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &8 RE&mE R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZTAF+T-_RA=+T—HILFE
2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt BETT BT

Cash flows from operating BEFTBNHAERE

activities
Cash used in operations 2B MIRS 30(a) (377,056) (155,180)
Interest paid BERFE (31,256) (52,394)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENBEENEH (23,888) (12,192)
Overseas tax paid BAREINHIR (769) (1,926)
Overseas tax refunded RIEBINGHIE 65 4
Net cash used in operating activities 23&;E8)FTHAFIR S (432,904) (221,688)
Cash flows from investing RETDHNASREE

activities
Acquisition of property, plant and BAYE « #EK

equipment R A (1,304) (3,653)
Acquisition of investment properties B A& (39,207) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of BAREYE

investment properties Be (37,051) —
Deposit paid for acquisition of U BE BB A )

subsidiaries B2e (78,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HE¥E « #E %

plant and equipment TSR 685 723
Decrease in short-term bank deposits %8 HA$R1T1F 7Z0R 2 22,593 60,271
Funds released from/(applied to) =P

financial assets, net W5 &E - )5 44,786 (32,536)
Repayment of loans to third party  HE=FHEEER = 9,324
Interest received B U F 8 6,111 7,369
Decrease in amounts due Bt & N BR ZOB A

from associates 265 1,505
Dividends received from an associate & Uk B4 A F1R% S - 2,137
Dividends received from financial BRIZAFEERBEZRST]

assets at fair value through IREVES I B ERR B

profit or loss 106 727
Net cash (used in)/generated WREES(BR),EL

from investing activities R FIE & (81,016) 45,867
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &R &R E &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZTNF+_A=+—BILFE
2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$000
Kzt BT BT
Cash flows from financing MEFEBENHRAERE
activities
Issue of shares BT 108,500 300,113
Share issue expenses RRIDBEITHRX (1,757) (10,054)
Repurchase of shares i B i (n = (366)
Increase/(Decrease) in trust receipts {SFEIRERITE R
bank loans =, ) 161,911 (117,607)
Additions of other bank loans FILEBIRITERK 481,421 253,610
Repayment of other bank loans EEREBRITENK (270,138) (213,331)
Repayment of other loans BEATER (9,790) (12,261)
Decrease in amounts due IRES N B FIB
to associates A (222) (605)
Interest element of finance lease N@EHERE
rental payments & (102) (249)
Capital element of finance lease NREHEER
rental payments 2B (1,520) (2,206)
Capital injection from minority DERTHRIZA
shareholder A& - 76

Net cash generated from financing @i & /& B E 4 Y
activities FIH S 468,303 197,120

Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 R 1717 2O 2> - 750

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and R&RIAESEEY

cash equivalents ORA) 3G (45,617) 22,049
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzR&Xk

at 1 January HWEEEY 311,553 283,461
Effect of exchange rate changes [EREF B - 6,043
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—82

at 31 December HWERESEEY 30(b) 265,936 311,553
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 Bf 75 #f 3% B =

GENERAL INFORMATION

Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in steel trading, steel processing and
commercial property.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983,
and have a secondary listing on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited since 1990.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23 April 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

—REH

BRZERAERQF(IARF ) A—HK
BERAR - HMB AR EEXB /M
#HES - MBI T REEEME

ARBRBREEMR L REHRRER
DA ARABEMBE—NN=ZFERE
BHMAERZABRAR([BRA]) £
M R ANZFERFINERESFRZ S
PRARARIESE — L o

BREHAI - FEFERRABET
TLHR - HEMBRAELBAESTRE
—E-ZFENA-+=HHERE -

EREBREE

ARG EWHERRIZAN TR ST
RERNTX - RRERAIN - HFEBE
EMEFRNAEFENERER -

21 REEE

ARG MBHRRTIRRE LG
NREMBEMREEMEHREE(E
BUBREER DRR - I - K
RAEMBRRITBREBRRAES
MR RI R BB R BGRIIRE <88
BEER - RAMBHRREERE
SERRAERE  URIREWE - 1%
RFEFE BB SR A0 B 7% & E A
R AB(BEITETIR)NEMRM
{EHIER] °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has adopted the following new and
amended HKFRSs as of 1 January 2009:

e HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments —
Disclosures” (Amendment) (effective
1 January 2009). The amendment
requires enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurement and liquidity risk.
In particular, the amendment requires
disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting
policy only results in additional disclosures,
there is no impact on loss per share.

° HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of
Financial Statements” (effective 1 January
2009). The revised standard prohibits
the presentation of items of income and
expenses (that is, “non-owner changes in
equity”) in the statement of changes in
equity, requiring “non-owner changes in
equity” to be presented separately from
owner changes in equity in a statement
of comprehensive income. As a result,
the Group presents in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity all owner
changes in equity, whereas all non-owner
changes in equity are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Comparative information has
been re-presented so that it also is in
conformity with the revised standard.
Since the change in accounting policy only
impacts presentation aspects, there is no
impact on loss per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based
Payment” (effective 1 January 2009) deals
with vesting conditions and cancellations.
It clarifies that vesting conditions are
service conditions and performance
conditions only. Other features of a share-
based payment are not vesting conditions.
These features would need to be included
in the grant date fair value for transactions
with employees and others providing
similar services; they would not impact
the number of awards expected to vest
or valuation there of subsequent to grant
date. All cancellations, whether by the
entity or by other parties, should receive
the same accounting treatment. The
Group and Company has adopted HKFRS
2 (Amendment) from 1 January 2009.
The amendment does not have a material
impact on the Group’s or Company’s
financial statements.

In respect of borrowing costs relating
to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation
is on or after 1 January 2009, the Group
capitalises borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset as part
of the cost of that asset. The change in
accounting policy had no material impact
on loss per share as the Group does not
have any qualifying asset at 31 December
2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer
loyalty award credits to be accounted
for as a separate component of the sales
transaction in which they are granted.
The consideration received in the sales
transaction is allocated between the loyalty
award credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to
the loyalty award credits is determined
by reference to their fair value and is
deferred until the awards are redeemed
or the liability is otherwise extinguished.
The change in accounting policy had
no material impact on the Group's or
Company’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 provides guidance on the
accounting for a hedge of a net investment
in a foreign operation. This includes
clarification that (i) hedge accounting may
be applied only to the foreign exchange
differences arising between the functional
currencies of the foreign operation and
the parent entity; (ii) a hedging instrument
may be held by any entities within a group;
and (iii) on disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative gain or loss relating to
both the net investment and the hedging
instrument that was determined to be an
effective hedge should be reclassified to
the income statement as a reclassification
adjustment. As the Group currently has
no hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation, the interpretation has had no
impact on the financial position or results
of operations of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

e  HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments” (effective
1 January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14, "Segment Reporting”, and aligns
segment reporting with the requirements
of the US standard SFAS 131, “Disclosures
about segments of an enterprise and
related information”. The new standard
requires a “management approach”,
under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purposes. The Group
has adopted HKFRS 8 since 1 January
2009, which did not result in any increase
in the number of reportable segments.
The segments applied in the previous
consolidated financial statements were
consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to
existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010 or later
periods, but the Group has not early adopted
them:

e  HK(IFRIC) 17, “Distribution of Non-cash
Assets to Owners” (effective on or after
1 July 2009). The interpretation is part of
the HKICPA’s annual improvements project
published in May 2009. This interpretation
provides guidance on accounting for
arrangements whereby an entity distributes
non-cash assets to shareholders either as
a distribution of reserves or as dividends.
HKFRS 5 has also been amended to require
that assets are classified as held for
distribution only when they are available
for distribution in their present condition
and the distribution is highly probable. The
Group and Company will apply HK(IFRIC)
17 from 1 January 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 Bf 75 #f 3% B =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHBEREZ)
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 ERIR#EE)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B B [ R ()

(continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations (b) 14 7R AE R0 T 2N £ B R B
to existing standards that are not yet effective W7 R IR AR 2 & ET
and have not been early adopted by the Group RREE)

(continued)

. HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”, (effective
from 1 July 2009). The revised standard
requires the effects of all transactions
with minority interests to be recorded in
equity if there is no change in control and
these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
also specifies the accounting when control
is lost. Any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured to fair value, and a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
prospectively to transactions with minority
interests from 1 January 2010.

e HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business
Combinations” (effective from 1 July
2009). The revised standard continues to
apply the acquisition method to business
combinations, with some significant
changes. For example, all payments to
purchase a business are to be recorded
at fair value at the acquisition date, with
contingent payments classified as debt
subsequently re-measured through the
income statement. There is a choice on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. All
acquisition-related costs should be
expensed. The Group will apply HKFRS
3 (Revised) prospectively to all business
combinations from 1 January 2010.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHBEREZ)
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 ERIREZ)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BT B R (E)

(continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations (b) 17 A 2R T AN £ B R B
to existing standards that are not yet effective o B IR A XER 2 (BET
and have not been early adopted by the Group R2RE ()

(continued)

° HKAS 38 (Amendment), “Intangible
Assets” (effective from 1 July 2009).
The amendment is part of the HKICPA's
annual improvements project published in
May 2009 and the Group and Company
will apply HKAS 38 (Amendment) from
the date HKFRS 3 (Revised) is adopted.
The amendment clarifies guidance in
measuring the fair value of an intangible
asset acquired in a business combination
and it permits the grouping of intangible
assets as a single asset if each asset
has similar useful economic lives. The
amendment will not result in a material
impact on the Group’s or Company’s
financial statements.

e HKFRS 5 (Amendment), “Measurement
of Non-current Assets (or disposal
groups) classified as held for sale”. The
amendment is part of the HKICPA's
annual improvements project published
in May 2009. The amendment provides
clarification that HKFRS 5 specifies the
disclosures required in respect of non-
current assets (or disposal groups)
classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations. It also clarifies that the
general requirement of HKAS 1 still apply,
particularly paragraph 15 (to achieve a fair
presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources
of estimation uncertainty) of HKAS 1. The
Group and Company will apply HKFRS 5
(Amendment) from 1 January 2010. It is
not expected to have a material impact
on the Group's or Company’s financial
statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHBEREZ)
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 ERRES)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B J R (4E)

(continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations (b) )7 A5 2T AN £ [ N 4R 42 R
to existing standards that are not yet effective 4z B K IR A AR Z 55T
and have not been early adopted by the Group R ()

(continued)

° HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Presentation of
Financial Statements”. The amendment is
part of the HKICPA's annual improvements
project published in May 2009. The
amendment provides clarification that
the potential settlement of a liability by
the issue of equity is not relevant to its
classification as current or non-current. By
amending the definition of current liability,
the amendment permits a liability to be
classified as non-current (provided that the
entity has an unconditional right to defer
settlement by transfer of cash or other
assets for at least 12 months after the
accounting period) notwithstanding the
fact that the entity could be required by
the counterparty to settle in shares at any
time. The Group and Company will apply
HKAS 1 (Amendment) from 1 January
2010. It is not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s or Company’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKFRS 2 (Amendments), “Group Cash-
settled Share-based Payment Transactions”
(effective from 1 January 2010). In
addition to incorporating HK(IFRIC) — Int
8, “Scope of HKFRS 2”, and HK(IFRIC) —
Int 11, "HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions”, the amendments
expand on the guidance in HK(IFRIC) — Int
11 to address the classification of group
arrangements that were not covered by
the interpretation. The new guidance is
not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Transactions with minority interests

(c)

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with
parties external to the Group. Disposals to
minority interest result in gains and losses for
the Group and are recorded in the consolidated
income statement. Purchases from minority
interest result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
board of directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in equity.

Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in
the available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRERER 2

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

24 SMBER(E)

(c) Group companies o ZEEFL A

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

e income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRERER 2

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 MX - @BREREE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvements

20 to 50 years

2 to 10 years

(over the period of leases)
10 years

4 to 10 years

4 to 10 years

— Machinery
— Furniture and equipment
— Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets
(a) Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks
are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.
(b) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of ten years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting period.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
or associates is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
or associate in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of
the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date (the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset). Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
other gains, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidation income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and
classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the security
and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. The translation differences
on monetary securities are recognised in
profit or loss; translation differences on non-
monetary securities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Changes in the fair
value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as gains
and losses from investment securities.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine
that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or obligor;

e A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

e  The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

e |t becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

e  The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

e Observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of
financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. If a loan
or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria refer to (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the separate consolidated
income statement. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the separate consolidated income
statement.

2.11 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated
group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRERER 2

2.11 Investment properties (continued)

211 REMEE)

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is met.
The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers. Investment property
that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property or for which the market has
become less active continues to be measured at fair
value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases
in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #xr &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2 EESHRRBEE)

2.11 Investment properties (continued)

211 REMEE)

Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
gain.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,

AHEEPHEGEBEaRIIIRSE
Tl — BB
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it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, HDkE A MEREE  HRN
and its fair value at the date of reclassification EFEFOBEEHNATE et
becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property M S & AE A o 35 1F B 72 o) 2%

that is being constructed or developed for future

REBRBIEREDEONE -

use as investment property is classified as property, DA  HENEE  WiRK
plant and equipment and stated at cost until Ryg  BEEERENERTK S
construction or development is complete, at which b EEEHSEANEYELE
time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted BRI E YRR o

for as investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment BiEEEe B Z 169+ &Y

becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as

ERN 12NE ﬁm%ﬂﬁﬁlﬁ%
BREMRRREYE  ZHER
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a revaluation of property, plant and equipment MEBER o A - EAFEKE
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value reverses a ﬂﬁpx&mﬁ@)gﬂagé@ A G A

previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

For a transfer from properties held for sale to
investment properties, any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRERE)

2.13 Accounts and other receivables

2.13 FERIRIR R K& B

Accounts receivable are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of accounts and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts (if any).

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESHBRERE2Z)
(continued)
2.17 Borrowings 217 &

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHBEREZ)
(continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.18 ZERBEMRBR(Z)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of each reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within 12
months after the end of each reporting period
are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRRERE)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 BRRFI(Z)

(d) Share-based compensation (@) KRG BERAHE

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee
of the entity over a specified time period).
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when
the options are exercised is credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium, net
of any directly attributable transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
value-added tax, business tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sale of goods — income from sale of goods
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to customers.

Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Service income — service income is recognised
in the accounting periods in which the services
are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

ERTHRERERZ)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

221 Ik RmER(E)

(d) Interest income — interest income is recognised
using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables are recognised

using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income - dividend income is
recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.22 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the consolidated income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

2.22
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest-rate risk, cash flow interest-rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a treasury
committee under policies approved by the board of
directors. The committee identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The board provides
principles for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments, and investing of excess
liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. Approximately 87% (2008: 88%)
of the Group’s turnover are denominated
in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating units making
the sale, whilst approximately 10%
(2008: 10%) of costs are denominated
in the units’ functional currency. The
Group manages the foreign exchange
exposure arising from its normal course
of business activities and investments in
foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flow generated from business transactions
locally. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and forward
exchange contracts are used for hedging
purposes when required.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$") is pegged to the United
States dollar (“US$"), the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is
minimal.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in
Chinese Renminbi (RMB) exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit/(loss) after income
tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group’s equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bf 7 3y 3% MY ==

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BMERBEEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEEREE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) () HNERE(E)
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
FRFRGRE
AR®EFR " EBFEBWM &8N
(T (D) (HD)

% HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BBTT

2009 —EZThEF
If HK$ weakens against RMB HETRAE®EH 10 (2,302) (2,302)
If HKS$ strengthens against RMB {#i#TR AR #EH (10) 2,302 2,302
(Increase)/
Increase/  Decrease in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
BRET1S iR
ARELEF/ BEOEM), EsEmn/
(FB&) A (A
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ST
2008 —TTNF
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT AR5 10 (1,752) (1,752)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB {71 5 A Rl (10) 1,752 1,752
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HERBEEHRZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBEBEERE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) TG EGE (&)
(i)  Price risk (i) (BIEER

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair
values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity
investments (Note 14) as at 31 December
2009. The Group’s listed investments are
listed in Hong Kong and overseas are
valued at quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments
with all other variables held constant and
after any impact on income tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMEREEHEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BERBERE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) BRI ()
(i) Price risk (continued) (i) BIRERE)

Increase/
(Decrease) in
carrying Increase/
amount (Decrease) in Increase/
of equity profit after (Decrease) in
investment income tax equity
BERE REAARE
IREEEN . RFENS #S8Em
(WD) (WD) (imD)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B TT BWTT BRI

2009 —EThE
5% increase in equity price BFERLAS% 631 526 526
5% decrease in equity price BR&EEE THES% (631) (526) (526)
Increase/
(Decrease) in
carrying (Increase)/
amount  Decrease in Increase/
of equity loss after (Decrease) in
investment income tax equity
BRAZE  BRFAER#E
IREEE AN BEOEM), RS
(R2) D R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BT
2008 ZETN\EF
5% increase in equity price AEAEIE EF5% 2,010 1,678 1,678
5% decrease in equity price AEAEHE TBE5% (2,010) (1,678) (1,678)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. During 2009 and
2008, the Group’s borrowings at variable
rate were denominated in US$, RMB and
HKS.

The Group has not hedged its exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk,
as the management considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss)
after income tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

3

REREERZ)
3.1 MERBERE)
(a) TWEREEE)

(i) RensRAFERER

(continued) R (42)
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
FRErigI%
FIEEE RSN #2:8m
82/ (Kd) (D) (D)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT A%TT
2009 ZEENE
us$ £ 100 (830) (830)
RMB AR 100 (873) (873)
HKS$ BT 100 (1,155) (1,155)
us$ Xt (100) 830 830
RMB AR%® (100) 873 873
HK$ AT (100) 1,155 1,155
(Increase)/
Increase/  Decrease in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
BrAT1S 512
Fl=EZ BEOEM), EmEnS
1,/ CRd) D CR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
2008 —EEN\E
Us$ xE7T 100 (212) (212)
RMB AR 100 (333) (333)
HK$ BT 100 (803) (803)
Us$ = (100) 212 212
RMB AR (100) 333 333
HK$ BT (100) 803 803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

(c)

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, due from associates and other
receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are disclosed in Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of reporting period,

fre M HRARM T

MERBRER(2)
3.1 MBERRERE)
© mBEZERE)

RIBE LM ARREER 2 5K
B AEERHE B RRMH

based on the contractual undiscounted BEZERRINT ¢
payments, was as follows:
Carrying
amount
as per Total More than ~ More than
consolidated  contractual ~ Ondemand  1yearbut  5years but
balance undiscounted or within less than less than
sheet  cash flows 1 year 5 years 10 years
ERe Bi#
REffREC  MAMELZ EEk —EhL BEHL
BEE RERERE -FARE  ERIFA  ERTER
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ERTT ERTT T T
2009 ZEENE
Borrowings #R 959,156 973,440 581,408 359,068 32,964
Due to associates REELTRE 2,079 24,079 24,079 - -
Bills and accounts payable BHREREREE 359,049 359,049 359,049 - -
Other payables and accruals HeRREREHER 42,499 42,499 42,499 - -
Guarantee for general hanking facilities  &BYE A\ FIRTRBEH Z 1R
granted to an associate - 21,730 21,730 - -
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage BEMMEREZHELS
facilities granted to the buyers of the ~ IMBTEHZ R
Group's properties - 86 86 = =
1384783 1,420,883 1,028,851 359,068 32,964
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBEE )
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (0 FmEEeER(E)

Carrying Total More than More than

amountasper  contractudl  On demand 1 year 5 years

consolidated  undiscounted orwithin - butless than  but less than

balance sheet ~ cash flows 1 year 5 years 10 years
Risa BAVE]

HEABRZ  MAMEZ (331 )t REE
kEE RERSEE FARE  ERGER EIMEA
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
kiawe ik Swe BRI YT BT

2008 2 J]t:3
Borrowings BH 597,272 610,316 456,861 100,331 53,124
Due to associates N 24,301 24,301 24,301 - -
Bills and accounts payable ERNZERERRE 335,897 335,897 335,897 - -
Other payables and accruals HpERRERETER 113479 113479 113479 = =
Guarantee for general banking faciities ~ ABENFRTRA L ZER

granted to an associate - 21,730 21,730 - -
Guarantee for general banking faciities  AfEERTRE(EL 2 ER

granted to a supplier - 23,400 23,400 - -

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage ~ AEEMEREERBER
facilties granted to the buyers of the MASRITEL 2 BR
Group's properties - 2,107 2,107 - -

1,070,949 1,131,230 977,775 100,331 53,124
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity (including share capital,
reserves, retained profits, minority interests
and other loans from minority shareholders of
subsidiaries as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet).

During 2009, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2008, was to maintain a debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2009 and
2008 are as follows:

fre M HRARME

3 MERREHEE)

3.2 EERBER

AEBEERESZ BRRARERSE
BRFBEE 2R URIRRER
& RECRIFE AGRKH
i RERERESERIAREE
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RERYUREELRERE  AREH
SREARRKNBREZEE © [
BRRIREE R BEITHD

AEBIZER RERHBERALL RE
BN o bbb AR BT HRE IR AR
ABRAGE - @R FERBER
(BRERBEEABRMIITZR
BIFERBDEF)RRERREF
EBYWtE - KRBERABEMEE
Sffn (BREEEEREBERMY
TRHJEAS ~ 8~ RE &R - DB
PR M2 N M B A B DB R 0 E
TER)

R-ZFZENE  AEEZRBR
MR B AR BERA L RER

90% ' M_FTFT\FHER - R=F
TNFR=FEN\F+=A=+—
A 2 (&5 BUG HBER AL R4 T

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRETT TSI

Total debts HAETS 959,156 597,272
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : RE MBS EFEY (265,936) (311,553)
Net debt FETS 693,220 285,719
Total equity BT 1,588,051 1,469,321
Adjusted capital LB AR AN 1,592,489 1,473,759
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BT T REAR AN b = 44% 19%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments
that are measured in the balance sheet at fair value,
this requires disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

e  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group's assets that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2009.

Assets HiE

BAHESBR=RIIR
MRS EE
— ETRARRE 5

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— listed equity securities

AR e B TS AR Y RE

3 MERREHEE)

3.3 OSFEMGE
HEBPBEENE7TRAETRN
TRNF—A—BER  AEBEE
REEABRUAATEFENE R
TEFEAZERAR  FEREBEUAT
AEEFESERFEEATETES
i
o [RBEEENBEBEEEMS L

RFRIE (RAGFHEE) (E—4) ©

o BRE—RABERREN &
EXAERNA B (BMER) K
i (BB AIME L ) B
FiSs AB(FE ) -

o WIFRENERMGEIRME
EHEEXBERAEBERIT
AEZHAEBE) (F=/) °

TREINAEER_ZZZTNF+=

A=+—HUAAFEFENEE °

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

EF— FE R F=R 4=

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BA¥Tr BETT
12,610 - - 12,610

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

EERMSEEZeMIAZAY
BENRBEBBHRZTHERE
H o WRER A S5 RAEWHNRZ S
i« KHE - KEAN  EXS
E - BRERSEERE TSP E
& BZERERMIZAFRAE
BAHEEREHEERS  Blzm
BREER - AEBEBTEE
EFMAMSREARTEE - %5
TEBE—H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations, taking into
account latest market information and past
experience. These calculations and valuations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

3 MERREHEE)

3.3 AFEMEHE)

VHEERTSEEEZEMTA
(WHHIRZITETR) 2 A TFERK
REERMEE - ZFEHERMIA
RAREERBTAESHAER
ISR - HH BRI E [ AK
R RIE - IR A FEFE—A
TANMEERBABSABREE
5 AIZBIABE & -

i — 1Bk % [EE K& AEXL FFRIZ
AEBRMSEERETE - AZATA
BE=&-

4 MRBEHEERAER

RE A H G & RS ARG - WREBE
RENECARETHE  BRERH
BRTREREEHERIKEFHITRR -

41 BRBEHERERER

AEEEARRIEH BREMMBREE © P
BHerhEnAEER  ROSH
HERGERAER - RAKSEHRT
Ef B ENEEMR ENIREE
fEHERFEN G E MR R HL
o

@ Wx BERREGHHELH

R mEmE
EAEEMHRABERRERR

IRE(E ] B ORI MBS - ZA5E
ME  BERRENHEHEL
o e & 0 PR REE TTRUE R
A o EERIIHMRNBER
B W HENKE HE
TR £ ifE AR A R E
BRREABEAEMETE -
BEETE MG (ERZ A A A6
RfhE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of properties is
normally the current prices in an active market
for comparable properties. In the absence of
such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition
or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences, by reference to independent
valuations; and

(ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices.

If information on current or recent prices of
investment properties is not available, the fair
values of investment properties are determined
using discounted cash flow valuation
techniques. The Group uses assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing
at end of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions underlying
management’s estimation of fair value are
those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals; void
periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are
regularly compared to actual market yield data,
and actual transactions by the Group and those
reported by the market.

fre M HRARME

4 RBEMEERAEE)

4.1 MBEHEERME®(E)

(b) REYRER-FlERIGET

MEN D FENRERELE
AR R YRR BT S
MERER FRALEE
o AREE—-RIGERN
AP EEHEENEEERE
B EIELHIEE - AREE
EEZHEMER 84

() UBUGEEERZ2Z T
RIS ~ AR FE YD
EEARBRTSNERER
(HEBRNAFEEERHE
EAA)  KRABARBR
HFER K&

(i) AR EERTERED
BRI EER - R
VAR BR 5% EB AR IR
2 A R EA LA ]

ANRBEERTS & By S B EIR EY
Bf - REMENRHENA
ARG EERMETE - A%
BMANRREIERERSH
HIRERATISERERE

EEEBHAFHEMITNERR
RFN - ARESHE : 8
HRKRMGHEE B 4
ERTE + REEMRRIRE - it
FHETHERERNHS WS
BUBA R AR E B ERRZ 57
MEWEEHLLE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

(c)

(continued)

The expected future market rentals are
determined on the basis of current market
rentals for similar properties in the same
location and condition.

Income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions
in the periods in which such determination are
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to
certain temporary differences and tax losses
are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax in the periods in which such estimate
is changed.

AR e MRS AR MY RE

4

R E AR R (2)

4.1 MBEHEERME®(E)

(b) BEYFLFESGE(E)

TEHIR R T 5 SR IRAE AR L
YRR — B AR E B

TIHHESETE

€ FFFHRELEH

AEETEETBEREBHMN
PR - HEEV AR ESER
B RRERENERE - T8
EMERHE - £ —REHB
B BAZXSEAEMY
R BB AR B 155 T E B TN RE
B - L F R RETBE
RESVCHENSRETE - It
EFERRTEFLHEEEY
e B BT 15 B2 A0 4R 2T P 15 70 2

o

EEEERRRKAIEFERE
RIREN - SERERLTHIE
BUREMA - AHEZERE
RPBEBNRELEMEHEES
AR - AFRABERERINER
RERGEBRERE
WA ERELEREREE

flEte -

TS TLRIRER
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BRSHEERIEZ)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s 4.2 ERFEEESHRFNOREEIE

accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement,
the Group considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only
to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately
(or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

REYFEBET HHYZE 5

AEEEE - RYERETEER
RBEME - EIELAEE - A%
EeETRZMEMELNRERE
EREAZHERFANETE
EMFE EIARMEMELDN
Reng TERARBZYE T
KERREEXHERIENEESR
7= o

Fo ey 2 B rh i) — BB 60 2 A A BRER
HeXEREAEEREMEA
B o s — D AR B R E S i
EEMBIRBEHIER/THRALE
W FRD A B & (RIRBE
HEBYHHE)  AEEEHZSE
BB BILECIR © MR FHR D A AIIA
BYHE  ZMERAGEETEKR
B REEERHEEE M RB K
EITBRREMF AR LR SIEY
¥ EETHMBRBEGTIEEKR
REXBENEITEERREDE
B ZAfEHLHIE - AEEEELH
B SR L METEYE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before
income tax for the year. The information provided to the
directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is organised into three major operating units:
(i) steel trading; (ii) steel processing; (iii) commercial
property; and (iv) other segment comprises, principally,
management services business.

SEEH

TREBRRECREERARAIES
g  BEEFEAEENRERE - AT
EEEMDERER - EEHPICREE

LESREIRTE TRREDEB

BEEeRAFERAEHAAN, (&
B RFHERE D BBHRAE - AESHSE
B ERRA M B HRRERAENTT
A=

ANEBA = EAEELEEMMARK ¢ ()3
HE S (VREMNT : (EERHE
K(v) EEHEPESE B BIEE AR

Turnover recognised during the year is as follows: INEEER 7 ST
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETT
Sale of goods HE 3,219,932 8,299,344
Rental income He WA 19,774 14,350
Service income Rl 745 e A 17,008 20,902
3,256,714 8,334,596
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEBEEE)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December
2009 are as follows:

BE_EEAE+—A=t+-BiLEE
HSEEEIT

Steel Steel Commercial
trading processing  property Others Unallocated Group
WEES  WEMI BEEME ®E PR %@
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#RETT EBTT E%TRT ERTT  ERTT  E%TR
Total segment sales NEbEELR 2,890,369 349,612 19,998 18,431 - 3278410
Inter-segment sales PHEHE (21,008) - (224) (464) - (21,696)
Sales HE 2,869,361 349,612 19,774 17,967 - 3,256,714
Operating profit/(loss) before ~ RETREMHE RIZ
change in fair value of ATEERER
investment propertiesand  FIIRMBISEEZ
financial assets at fair value ~ AFEEFHALE
through profit or loss &l (58) 29,341 (14,606) 23,510 = (27,305) 10,940
Change in fair value of BEMELTELR
investment properties - = 39,085 - - 39,085
Change in fair value of financial XA FEZE BB
assets at fair value through ~ ZIIRAOBIFSBEZ
profit or loss AFER - - - - 17,202 17,202
Operating profit/(oss) BB,/ (B8) 29,341 (14,606) 62,595 = (10,103) 67,227
Finance costs BERKA (12,673) (7,352) (7,719 = (486) (28,230)
Share of losses of associates ~ JEFEE& 1 B]E51E - - - - (18,932) (18,932)
Segment results DR 16,668 (21,958) 54,876 = (29,521) 20,065
Income tax expense ity (12,401)
Profit for the year ERRA 7,664
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEEE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December BT )N\F+-_B=+—HILt&EE
2008 are as follows: B D EREELENT
Steel Steel  Commercial
trading  processing property Others  Unallocated Group
HEEH  HENI BERME L AAR &E

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
AT A%TT ARt %t ARt BRI

Total segment sales DEHEL 7,711,903 591,986 14,568 21,693 - 8,340,150
Inter-segment sales AEREHE (4,657) (270) 218) (409) = (5,554)
Sales HE 7,707,246 591,716 14,350 21,284 - 8334,5%

Qperating profit/(loss) before ~ R&THZ A% »
change in fair value of BRAVEEBRER
investment propertiesand ~ FIIRMBIEEEZ
financial assets at fair value ~ AF(ERH L
through profitorlossand A ENEERE
gain arising from transfer RENFMEEZ
from properties held for sale WIS

to investment properties AR/ (58) 89,999 29,744 11,063 335 (41,957) 89,184
Change in fair value of REMEATEER
investment properties - - 13,775 - - 13,775

Change in fair value of financial ZA FEZE BB

assets at fair value through ~ JIIREBTBEE

profit or loss NEEEH - - - - (56,551) (56,551)
Gain arising from transfer from & EAT

properties held forsaleto ~ WAWEMEE

investment properties P, ¢y - - 169,139 - = 169,139
Operating profit/(loss) BERF /(B8 89,999 29,744 193,977 335 (98,508) 215,547
Finance costs REME (24,864) (20,289) (4,737) (313) (3,804) (54,007)
Share of losses of associates  JE(REE 2 A EIER - - = = (196,866)  (196,366)
Segment results DEEE 65,135 9,455 189,240 22 (299,178) (35,326)
Income tax expense i (69,577)
Loss for the year FEFE (104,903)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with DEEHER BRI G 2EBILRE
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to BETE-ECERMISERIE °

third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEBEEE)
Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned by each DE LS e R S EREEEY S5 (&
segment without allocation of unallocated corporate B)MY A ABERSRBZ RS @+ &
expenses including directors’ salaries, share of losses of AEEEES BB NARER - %
associates, fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets N EFEBEFIIRNMBEEZ AF
at fair value through profit or loss and loss on deemed Bz (E51E) RARERE AJ 4 A 7
acquisition of interest in an associate. mEA o
Other segment information HESSEIE
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December R-_ZFBFENE+_A=+—HHHIE
2009 and depreciation, amortisation and capital EMBEURBE-_ZSTNLE+=-A
expenditures for the year ended 31 December 2009 are as =+ —HILEEWTE B RELRHE
follows: T
Steel Steel Commercial
trading processing  property Others Unallocated Group
MERS  RENI BRERE He AR 5E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EWTR ERTR  ERTRT  RRTRT  EWTR

Assets BE 1,657,938 329,820 704,196 8,138 398,188 3,098,280
Liabilties AfE 775,609 336,883 186,958 6469 204310 1,510,229
Depreciation bl 798 5,994 1,859 1,765 469 10,885
Amortisation g - 368 37 - 1,263 1,668
Capital expenditures BARX 35 775 39,311 387 3 40,511
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2008 and depreciation, amortisation and capital
expenditures for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as
follows:

SERE(E)
HESBEHE)

R )\E+-A=+-BHHBE
ENAEURBE-—FENE+ A
=t-ALFENRE - EHREED
T :

Steel Steel  Commercial
trading  processing property Others  Unallocated Group
HEE S HEMT  EERME i KA £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B%TT BBt  AMTr  B%Tr B%Tx
Assets BE 1,186,553 457,941 579,309 8,926 431,308 2,664,037
Liabilities af5 541,316 297,746 94,789 8,895 251970 1,194,716
Depreciation & 847 6,204 2,275 1,514 503 11,343
Amortisation ] - 368 36 - 1,263 1,667
Capital expenditures BARY 609 1,097 1,654 133 160 3,653
Segment assets exclude financial instruments, deferred PEBELTEEERIE  BLEME
income tax assets, investments in associates, intangible REE BEARERE  BREE T

assets, income tax refundable and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities,
income tax payable, corporate borrowings and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Capital expenditures comprise additions to investment
properties and property, plant and equipment.

WEIMEHEETRDEARTREE
BE ARBEENSESTAER -

DHMEBELTEREEEHEHEE &
NAEHR EEERRETASEEAR
AMEREE  AHBEAEETAE
I8 o

§$ﬁ§ a%%ﬂiﬁ%%ﬂ%% - HEER
RIFHORE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5
Geographical information
The Group’'s business segments operate in four main

geographical areas, even though they are managed on a
worldwide basis.

AR e MRS AR Y RE

SERE(E)
HERH

RERBE XTS5 BB P fE X B i [ 48
2 BARANFEBRAEHTAER -

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
B%TIT P T IT
Sales (by location of customers) HE (IRERME H 8
— Mainland China —fE 1,937,641 2,752,025
— Asia (other than Mainland China — 25}
and Hong Kong) (T"BEEFEEES) 686,979 2,103,138
— Europe — BOM 468,903 2,897,564
— Others —HE 163,191 581,869
3,256,714 8,334,596
Non-current assets FERIMEE
— Mainland China — i E 695,487 625,795
- Hong Kong —&BB 228,984 75,910
— Europe — B 138 232
924,609 701,937

The non-current asset information above is based on the
location of assets and excludes financial instruments,
deferred income tax assets, investments in associates and
intangible assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, the
Group does not have any single significant customer with
the transaction value above 10% of the external sales.

U EFRRBEERBEMELRE D -
ETEREBTITA BETMEHREE
BENRIRENEBIEE

REBEZE - ZTZNFER_FTEN\F+_A
Z+—BULHFEYTERERT S ZIWAR
BAREERAI10%ZE—FF o
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6 HETHERTHERE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use ANEBERE T % i AR kE RS
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and RN ERED  HERESES T
their net book amounts are analysed as follows: m
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBRER
Leases of over 50 years A+FHUEHEE 62,308 63,552
Outside Hong Kong, held on: ERBUINEE -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +Z&Z A +FEANHEE 15,460 15,864
77,768 79,416
Leasehold land and land use rights with aggregate RZZEZNREF+_HA=+—A8 " #
carrying amount of approximately HK$77,768,000 as at Et R T EAEAKRBAENS
31 December 2009 (2008: HK$69,089,000) were pledged ¥ 77,768,000 L (Z T T )\ F : H¥E
to secure against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings 69,089,0007T) B A0 & BIRITEE
(see Note 19). A (ZHIEE 19) °
Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights MHE T &+ AR FEAE BN
during the year is as follows: N
2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
Opening HR 7)) 79,416 81,001
Exchange differences EHZER - 62
Amortisation of prepaid operating JE[N&EHE
lease payments TRIE (1,648) (1,647)
77,768 79,416
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 PE - BEREG
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Motor
Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HERT KA
BT Kig e I B g

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT ARTT ARt ARtz ARTr  ARTR

At 1 January 2008 RZZZN\F—H—H
Cost A 105,503 13,697 72,381 12,899 13333 217,813
Accumulated depreciation R&HTE (31,675) (8,654) (53,318) (9,698) (9,258)  (112,603)
Net book amount IREHE 73,828 5,043 19,063 3,201 4,075 105,210
Year ended BE_TZTN\F

31 December 2008 +ZA=+—RLEE
Opening net book amount  EA¥IRETFHE 73,828 5,043 19,063 3,201 4,075 105,210
Exchange differences fEH =% 1,772 246 - 85 33 2,136
Additions A 635 1,962 210 846 - 3,653
Disposals & - (37) (77) (38) (246) (398)
Depreciation e (3,457) (2,452) (3,154) (947) (1333 (11,343)
Closing net book amount ~ EAAR IR H{E 72,778 4,762 16,042 3,147 2,529 99,258
At 31 December 2008 ZETN\E

Jrfﬁ =t+-A

Cost AN 108,240 16,225 72,334 13,242 11,400 221,441
Accumulated depreciation  Z&HH7E (35462)  (11,463)  (56,292)  (10,095) (8,871)  (122,183)
Net book amount IREFE 72,778 4762 16,042 3,147 2,529 99,258
Year ended BE_TETNEF

31 December 2009 TZA=T—HLEE
Opening net book amount  ER#IIREFE 72,778 4,762 16,042 3,147 2,529 99,258
Exchange differences EREH (98) = = 2 = (96)
Additions A - 110 94 642 458 1,304
Disposals = - (89) = (11) = (100)
Depreciation e (3,468) (2,219) (3,149) (981) (1,068)  (10,885)
Closing net book amount ~ HRAX IR/ H(E 69,212 2,564 12,987 2,799 1,919 89,481

At 31 December 2009 RZZZNF

+=-A=+—H
Cost A 108,142 16,246 72,428 13,481 9,247 219,544
Accumulated depreciation  Z&HHTE (38930)  (13,682)  (59,441)  (10,682) (7,328)  (130,063)
Net book amount IREFE 69,212 2,564 12,987 2,799 1,919 89,481
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 PE BERBEBE)
Depreciation expense of approximately HK$5,658,000 EERHP YNBSS 658000 (==
(2008: HK$6,009,000) has been expensed in cost of =)\ : B%6,009,0007T ) 7E 5 & K A
sales, HK$798,000 (2008: HK$852,000) in selling Fsh g - 798 000 (ZEE N\ F ¢
and distribution expenses and HK$4,429,000 (2008: 7 #852,0007T ) st ASHE RDHER -
HK$4,482,000) in general and administrative expenses. MAS#4,429,0007C( Z 2 )\F : B
4,482,00070) BIFF A= RITHEM -
Buildings with carrying amount of approximately R-ZTZNE+—-—HF=+—8 ' EFIK
HK$63,570,000 at 31 December 2009 (2008: H{BE4)5%63,570,000 0 ( ZEE )\ £ -
HK$44,893,000) were pledged to secure against certain 7144,893,0007T) B A HEERITE
of the Group’s bank borrowings (see Note 19). RYEE R (R MIEE19) o
Motor vehicles and machinery include the following EEEAMETREAM T §E i & ks
amounts where the Group is a lessee under finance BETMEEE :
leases:
2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Cost — capitalised finance leases KA —-ERCRERE 7,149 8,984
Accumulated depreciation Z2xtinE (2,572) (3,079)
Net book amount R EFHE 4,577 5,905
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 #B/YE
2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000
BB TT BT T
Beginning of the year =) 522,726 286,501
Additions BN 39,207 -
Fair value gains (included in other AFEW (BIEAEE T
gains, net)(Note 22) EER) (Mtat22) 39,085 13,775
Exchange differences IE & Z=%8 - 15,099
Transfer from properties held HEEMEEA
for sale - 207,351
End of the year FR 601,018 522,726
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the properties
held for sale of the Group were reclassified as investment
properties. For the transfer from properties held for
sale to investment properties, the difference between
the fair value of the properties at the date of transfer
and its carrying amount, amounting to approximately
HK$169,139,000, was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008.

The investment properties were revalued on an open
market basis at 31 December 2009 by independent,
professionally qualified valuers, Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
net book amounts are analysed as follows:

S W75 R M &

wREMEE)

HE_ZZN\F+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEERGFEMEET 2B RIRE
Y - FEVEEREREMER - Z
YEEEE AN AFEMESLATAIRE
B4 A#5%169,139,0007T 2 FEIH) =5
AERIE—TETN\F+-_A=+—HL
FEMREBRRPER o

REMFHE_ZETNFT_A=1—H
B B A BB A IS & AR
HEEERARIREAMMEER

AEBEEREMENE R REIREFE
DA

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$000
EB¥ETT R IT
Mainland China ]

— held on leases of over 50 years  — AR +FHNA FHHEE 22,727 19,205

— held on leases of between 10 —EE+tEL+EH
and 50 years M E 578,291 503,521
601,018 522,726

At 31 December 2009, investment properties of
approximately HK$550,613,000 (2008: HK$449,942,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (see Note 19).

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEETRAD - IRARA

R-FEZAF+_A=1+—8 &EY
A8 %550,613,0007T ( —ZTF )\ £ ¢
75 #449,942,00070) B T - EAK
SEZRTRMEETR(RHFE19) °

HELAFRRRIER

(a) MELARRE

Company
27
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETT BT T
42,415 42,415

. Annual Report 2009 3 109 I



o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

iR e MRS AR MY RE

9 MEBARRERERE)

(a) MEBLATRE(E)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2009:

Name

A

Directly held:
BERE

Burwill and Company Limited

Burwill HK Portfolio Limited

Burwill China Portfolio Limited

Indirectly held:
MRS -

Burwill Minerals Limited

ERBXBRAT]

Burwill Resources Limited

ERMHREERAR

Place of
incorporation/
operations and
kind of legal entity

A/
B RO

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BREEREARH

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

RERAESAR
EfEAR

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

RERLESER
EADH

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BBEREMELA

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEBRARRA

Issued and
fully paid capital

ERTR
E&RRA

HK$50,000,000
and £50,000
71 50,000,0007T
50,0005

Us$2
2ETT

US$1
(E

HK$1
AT

HK$1,000,000
7 1,000,0007T

—EENFTA=1T—HzZx

ZHBATET -

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
TEERERL
En/ ARRE
BRARSH,

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

IRXBUE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
BB

Steel trading
HEZH
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9 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 9
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HEAFRBERERE)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(a) MEBLATRE(E)

Percentage of

Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital to the Group  Principal activities
TEERAL
Bl BEETR En/ AREE
A 1B ROATE AL EARBRAR BARS FEEHUE
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERE (&)
Burwill Resources Spain, S.A. Spain limited EUR62,000 90%  Steel trading
liability company 62,0008 7T HEE S
ERTEREAERT
Burwill Steel Company Limited The British Virgin Us$13 100%  Investment holding
Islands limited 13%7 REER
liability company
EBRAEEAR
E{EAR
Burwill Steel Pipes Limited Hong Kong limited HK$30,000,000 100%  Steel processing
BERHEERAA liability company 75 30,000,0007C EmT
BREEREARH
Burwill Times Industrial Limited Hong Kong limited HK$2 100%  Investment holding
ERRREXERATF liability company B 2T REZR
BEEBRAEARA
Burwill Warehousing Mainland China US$1,200,000 100%  Steel trading
(Shanghai) Limited (Note (i) ] 1,200,000% T MEE S
BERAR(L8)ERAR
(Hra20)
REmalEESERAA Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Steel processing
(i) i AR 10,000,0007T WENT
Dongguan Hingwah Metals Mainland China HK$72,000,000 100%  Steel processing
Factory Limited (Note ()) hE 75 # 72,000,0007T M T

REREREHARATF
(Ha)
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9 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 9
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HEAFRBERERE)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(a) MEBLATRE(E)

Percentage of

Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital to the Group  Principal activities
rEEHEL
BRI BETR En/ BREE
a8 1B AT AN EARRA REBEDE FEXBIUE
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERE (&)
BRI m (k%) Mainland China HK$28,500,000 100%  Steel processing
BRRR () hE 71 28,500,0007C ML
Hing Wah Metals Factory Hong Kong limited HK$5,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company 78¥ 5,000,0007C REZR
HED AR R BEBERARRA
Hillot Limited Hong Kong limited HK$500,000 100%  Securities investment
liability company 7 500,0007T FEARE
BREEREMALH
Goldenbridge Services Limited Hong Kong limited HK$2 100%  Property holding
InERBERAR liability company B 2T REME
BBAREMELA
BINEREZERAR Mainland China RMB60,000,000 69%  Commercial
(Hiat(i) HE AR 60,000,0007T property
BREIE
Yinmain Industrial Limited Hong Kong limited HK$2 100%  Property holding
EREXER AT liability company B 2 REME

BRBERALAT
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9

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited, & = &l 3% &
AR A7), Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory Limited
and BRI B M (R5) AR A F are wholly foreign
owned enterprises established in Mainland China to be
operated for 50 years up to March 2050, 20 years up to
December 2028, 20 years up to July 2013 and 12 years
up to December 2013, respectively.

(i) BMEBEREEAFREAT is a sino-foreign equity joint
venture established in Mainland China to be operated for
40 years up to April 2039.

The above list includes only those subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 December
2009.

Balances with subsidiaries

Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$131,000,000
(2008: HK$462,474,000) which bear interest at 5%
(2008: at commercial banks’ lending rate of 5% to
6.75%) per annum and are not repayable within one
year, all the outstanding balances with subsidiaries
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

4= AR

775 R M R

[0 =

9

HEAFRBERERE)

(a)

(b)

MEBATRR ()
pit -

() BERAM(LES)BRAR - R=m
BIRESARAR RxZERE
BERABRERMERM(Rx)
BRAEH BB BRI INE B
Bh¥ SEBMSARATEE
ZRHEF=H —t+EE-ZT=-)N\
FE+=ZR  Z+EFET—=Ft
Akt =—FEz—F—=F+=f-

(i) HBNEREXERABZNRHBEK
VZHHNREBERE  EXHLIL
FET=NFIA -

AEFIEBRESA /Y ARH
EBEEHZHBAR - EFR S
FINEEMBRARZHE  HE<
RIBBIRITR

RBE-FENF+-A=+—A
LB RIERBRE - HEARLR
BEMDREEER -

Bt I8 2 B A B

BB ARRRINAEBE
131,000,0007C( —Z BTN\ : B
462,474,0007T) 2 FERSE(ZE
TN\F : BEERITEENERER
5 EZ£6.75[F) R NER —FNE
KON - FTEE BB ARERY
AR - BRI E R B RKEFEN ©
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10

(a) Investments in associates — Group

iR e MRS AR MY RE

BEAFRERER

(a) BEELATRE-HKME

Group
%=HE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETT ST IT
Beginning of the year =) 271,334 475,321
Share of results of associates Friht & A R E4E
— loss before income tax — R A5 %5 Al B 1R (17,386) (197,384)
— income tax (credits)/expense —FEH(#E), X (1,546) 518
Share of other comprehensive P& A &)
income/(loss) of associates Hez2mEk A (EE) 3,310 (185)
Dividends received B S - (2,137)
Share of other reserves of FrihEt e AR H Bl
associates 2,224 2,669
Loss on deemed acquisition of RS- YN NG|
interest in an associate EmE1E = (13,537)
Exchange differences E X A= (330) 6,069
End of the year FR 257,606 271,334

I 114 Annual Report 2009 4 iy |



S —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bf 7 3y 3% MY ==

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10 BEATIREIRES &)

(continued)
(a) Investments in associates - Group (continued) () BEATFRE-SEH(Z)
The Group's interests in associates were as follows: AREE RS NTIHEZRDT
% of
Particulars Country of Profit/ interest
Name of issued capital incorporation Assets  Liabilities Revenues (loss) held
B#T B/ A
A A FH A ER BE B BA (BB)  ExE%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT AETT BETT BETx
2009
China LotSynergy Ordinary shares Bermuda 405,991 235953 17,619  (16,997) 20.74%
Holdings Limited of HK$0.0025 each, HHRE (Direct)
AR AT listed in Hong Kong (E#®)
B gkE% 0.09%
0.00257T - (Indirect)
REE F (&%)

Indirectly held:
A

Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 41,089 14,567 58,224 (5,604) 20%
Product (BVI) Limited ~ US$0.1 each, unlisted  Islands
Tk - TR RBREZHS
0.1367T * 3k kT

Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 234,241 174,677 470,484 3,137 29%
Processing & US$19,997,570 s
Distribution Co. Ltd. B# &2

5588 (450 A1 19,997,570% 7T

IMIERATR
AR SN2 Paid up capital of Mainland China 3,467 1,985 4,568 532 30%
BRAE RMBS5,000,000 B
BEHBEARARE
5,000,0007T

684,788 427,182 550,895  (18,932)
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES

AR e MRS AR MY RE

10 BELATRBRERE)

(continued)
(a) Investments in associates - Group (continued) () BEATFRE-SEH(Z)
% of
Particulars Country of Profit/ interest
Name of issued capital incorporation Assets  Liabilities Revenues (loss) held
BT &7,/ A
EA BRAGFE MR ER BE ai WA (BB EE%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A&t A%Tr A%
2008
China LotSynergy Ordinary shares Bermuda 377,155 195,666 24,241 (193,882) 20.74%
Holdings Limited of HK$0.0025 each, EHE (Direct)
EYERER AR listed in Hong Kong (B#%)
LER - G 0.09%
0.00257¢ (Indirect)
REB LT (F%)
Indirectly held:
RS
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 55,049 22,583 81,893 (6,232) 20%
Product (BVI) Limited ~ US$0.1 each, unlisted Islands
LAl - Bk EBRTHS
0.1%7 » FEEM
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 162,817 106,390 998,077 3,114 29%
Processing & US$19,997,570 H
Distribution Co. Ltd. ~ E&AAR
S8 (31 19,997,570 7T
MIERAE
AL RES =21 Paid up capital of Mainland China 2,901 1,949 2,924 134 30%
AR RMB5,000,000 I
VYN
5,000,0007T
597,922 326,588 1,107,135 (196,866)
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10 BEATRIREBRZ)
(continued)

(b) Investment in an associate - Company (b) BEBATRE AT
Company
NG
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Shares listed in Hong Kong RES EmkH,
— at cost — IR AR 10,766 10,766
Market value of listed shares s ik E 522,010 191,916
(c) Balances with associates () BEEATFHER
The outstanding balances with associates are EAEE N B R EIER - 258
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on KRR EREER
demand.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

1M1 #BENBSZ&MIA

775 R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B

RBERHR  SREMTAZIREE

financial instruments at the end of the reporting period T
are as follows:
Group $H
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
Loans and loss (held financial
receivables for trading) assets Total
BRAFESE
REFRE
MBEE At HE
HEREEL®R (EEERE) MBEE #oHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERTT BRTT BRTT A%TT
Financial assets as per ZirEBEREGER
consolidated balance sheet R 5 &
2009 “BEBAF
Available-for-sale AR ERSEE
financial assets - - 1,509 1,509
Financial assets at fairvalue AT EBBIEL
through profit or loss FIIR KBTS B B - 12,610 - 12,610
Bills and accounts receivable  FEUZEHE K FE UL IR B 1,075,523 - - 1,075,523
Deposits and other receivables %% M E T U 30,326 = = 30,326
Due from associates BN BREK 2,262 - - 2,262
Cash and bank balances W& MIRTTHE R 293,639 - - 293,639
1,401,750 12,610 1,509 1,415,869
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 11 R8I ZE€MmMT AR Z)
Group £H
Financial liabilities at
amortised costs
RMERR T AR
MM AR
HK$'000
BRTT
Financial liabilities as per RIraEEAEBERY
consolidated balance sheet BifsaE
2009 —EEhE
Borrowings BR 959,156
Due to associates IR BN B FRIE 24,079
Bills and accounts payable FENE B R IEIIRIE 359,049
Other payables and accruals HERMNIRIERETER 42,499
1,384,783
Group §£H
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
Loans and loss (held financial
receivables for trading) assets Total
BATERR
EEWEW
MEEE A E
ERkERG (EFEEAZR) MIEEE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT IT BT T
Financial assets as per RIFTGEEREBR
consolidated balance sheet  HYEITEEE
2008 ZETN\F
Available-for-sale AR ERBEE
financial assets - - 1,509 1,509
Financial assets at fair value $Z AT (EFE BB
through profit or loss SRR TS B EE = 40,195 = 40,195
Bills and accounts receivable JEWZ1E & EWIRIA 973,906 = = 973,906
Deposits and other receivables &4 I 2 & eI 50,501 - = 50,501
Due from associates NG 2,527 = = 2,527
Cash and bank balances B& RBP4 361,849 = = 361,849
1,388,783 40,195 1,509 1,430,487
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 1 BENBSZERMTRZ)

Group &E
Financial liabilities at
amortised costs
RSB A AR
WIS B E
HK$000
BEETIT
Financial liabilities as per RIra EEAEBRNY
consolidated balance sheet BB E
2008 —ZTN\F
Borrowings B 597,272
Due to associates NI /NCIE Gz 24,301
Bills and accounts payable FERT IR R E T IRIE 335,897
Other payables and accruals HERMNIRIERETER 113,479
1,070,949
12 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 12 AHHEMBEE
Group Company
£E N
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT BETRT BT TT
Club debentures SHES 1,509 1,509 90 90
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13 INVENTORIES 13 &8

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEETIT
Raw materials [RA1 % 67,994 85,333
Work-in-progress TR 1,819 2,712
Finished goods BUAK o 48,994 73,284
Consumables SHRE 1,088 1,245
119,895 162,574

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$2,992,073,000 (2008: HK$7,619,946,000).
14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

FERARERLERILYIAEERKA
B % 58 HET 4978 2,992,073,000 7T ( —
TT)\4F : #H#7,619,946,0007T) °

14 BAFESBRIFIRHMERE

Group Company
M| 07
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
Financial assets at fair value  ZAF(EFEBEED
through profit or loss: PINREVEI TS & E -
— Listed equity securities — LIRS
— Hong Kong — &% 9,098 36,920 1 1
— Overseas — 85N 3,512 3,275 = =
Market value of listed Em@EHFzmE
securities 12,610 40,195 1 1

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in other gains in the
consolidated income statement (see Note 22).

At 31 December 2008, equity securities listed in Hong
Kong with market value of approximately HK$36,919,000
were pledged to secure margin facility of the Group.

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

BRAFEBEBERINRNTEEENA
FEEE  EHRAEBRRANETWREF
HIR (R FIzE22) °

RZBEENE+_A=1+—8  REH
TR IR ANRE S5 T E 498 836,919,000
TLE AEBITRERE KT o

PR ES AT E DRI ER D
152 B B -
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15 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BEFRE - BERREAR X TEER
Group Company
£Em 27
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BWTT ARt #WTRT AR TT

Bills and accounts receivable  FEUNEENE K fEUNIRIE 1,078,018 977,338 - =
Less: provision for impairment & : FEUCEUR B B &
of receivables (2,495) (3.432) = -

Bills and accounts receivable  FEURZE4E & FEUR IR IE

- net (Note (a)) — R (Mit@) 1,075,523 973,906 = =
Loan to a director (Note 33) EE=E X (H1:£33) 586 733 = =
Deposit paid for acquisition of UEEHIE A RZE

subsidiaries 78,000 - - -
Deposits, prepayments e BRZRE

and other receivables HERUGK 465,057 127,667 484 432

543,643 128,400 484 432
Less: non-current portion: R FEmENER D ¢
Loan to a director and BEERM
prepayments SEUNEN (156,342) (537) = =
Current portion mENER D 387,301 127,863 484 432
1,462,824 1,101,769 484 432
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15 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods
for sales of goods ranging from 30 days to 120 days.
Consideration in respect of sold properties is payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. Rentals in respect of leased properties are payable
by the tenants on a monthly basis.

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts receivable as at 31
December 2009 is as follows:

iR e MRS R MY RE

15 BlRE  BERRARRTCERR

(%)
Hifat -

(a)

AEEEERHEEUAGRTEREFP=1H
E-B-_THZERY EREMNEEY
EWEEDRBHEEA QT HEHR - A
Bz AW ABRBFZAX -

RZZFZENF+_A=+—0H ' EKER
K EAIRIRRER AT AT

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ¥ T
Within three months =@AR 1,070,963 950,473
Over three months but within BB =EA MR
six months 7N E B 3,950 23,048
Over six months but within BB E A A
twelve months +—=@A 7 1,151
Over twelve months HBiBE+=—EA 3,098 2,666
1,078,018 977,338
Less: provision for impairment of B MG
receivables BERE (2,495) (3,432)
1,075,523 973,906

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect
to bills and accounts receivable as the Group has a large
number of customers, internationally dispersed.

(b)  Accounts receivable that are less than three months past due
are generally not considered impaired. As of 31 December
20009, the following accounts receivable were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

FEUCRIE R IR B B ARETNEE
R ARAEEERZEF @ BiHtER
B o

B H A = M A A EBUIRIE R B IR A
EERE -R=ZTENFT=_A=+—
H - L TREKIRE A @B &R E
W ERIBS R % ERITRE #E /R B K8k
MBI o FREKIRIE/IRER D 70
T

Group
$£m

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Within three months =@EAR 100,784 114,020
Over three months but within HBB=EA m A

six months N E A 3,621 23,048
Over six months but within BB E A MR

twelve months +—@A 7 24

Over twelve months HiE+—EA 603 452

105,015 137,544
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15 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BIRRE  BRERRETERR

(continued) (&)

Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)

(c)  As of 31 December 2009, none of the accounts receivable were (0 VWEEKRBER-ZZNF+=-_A=1+—
impaired and provided for (2008: HK$10,000). The amount BHRE(ZZZ/)\F: #¥10,0007T) ° B
of the provision was approximately HK$2,495,000 (2008: ZTETNFEFTZA=+—H  REEE
HK$3,432,000) as of 31 December 2009. The individually R 757E%2,495,000 (=T /)\5F: B
impaired accounts receivable mainly relate to customers, which 3,432,0007T) ° f& AR EH EUKIRIE E Z
are in unexpected difficult economic situations. The ageing of REBRRIERAIMEBERIZFHES o Ut
these accounts receivable is as follows: ZRWIRIBAIRER AT ¢

Group
%M
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Over twelve months Ba+ @A - 10
(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts (d) AEEEWEE KL FEWIRIER RS 58
receivable are denominated in the following currencies: ATHIEM REBEAL
Group
%@
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT EEET T
us$ EV 978,469 873,960
RMB ARH 32,817 43,014
HK$ BT 27,333 34,000
EUR B 36,904 22,932
1,075,523 973,906
() Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts (e) EUIRIBREREEZEIT -

receivable are as follows:

Group
|

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT R

At 1 January n—A—H 3,432 4,073

Provision for accounts FEURIE

receivable impairment AR 1,210 556
Accounts receivable RERETEE
written off during the U [o] i 8

year as uncollectible A (2,147) (1,197)

At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—~8 2,495 3,432
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15 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BIRE  BERIERARETEE®R

(continued) (%)

Notes: (continued) st - (&

(e) (continued) () (&)
The creation and release of provision for impaired accounts BB EE IR IEREN RS NEE D 6
receivable have been included in general and administrative HBEGEBRRT—RETHRERNA © £
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts EERE RIS E - RS ETEHEE
charged to the allowance account are generally written off, W B ZESNR £ BE R Y o

when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within bills and accounts receivable do not FEWEEREREBERNNE T SERSEES
contain impaired assets. ASERERE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting period is EREQH  EERBRYRSEREELS
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The it EEERZHAT(E - NEEAES
Group does not hold any collateral as security. AfEAEHEIEE S o
16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 16 HE&RBITHRE:
Group Company
=M 47
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BWTT ABTrT #WTRT AETT

Cash at banks and in hand SRITMEFRS 254,812 167,241 15,763 765
Short-term bank deposits ySEEERYES N 38,827 194,608 = =
293,639 361,849 15,763 765
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits RERITFRNERFNER138E(=ZF
was 1.38% (2008: 2.97%); these deposits have an TN\F :2978)  ZEFZRHFEHEE
average maturity of 185 days (2008: 239 days). HA185K(ZFF/\F: 239K) °
At 31 December 2009, cash and bank balances of R-BEZNF+_A=+—H8 HEX
approximately HK$52,635,000 (2008: HK$150,606,000) SRITHERRAYB1£52,635,000L(ZFEN
are denominated in RMB and placed with banks in £ #%150,606,0007T) RIAARE A
Mainland China. The remittance of these funds out BBy W7 R R B 2 SRAT o (e Bl
of Mainland China is subject to the exchange control EHZEESEXRRTPREBNEE.2
restrictions imposed by the Chinese Government. HNEEE B 16 o [RIRF - R PBIBUN
Also the exchange rate is determined by the Chinese EEJE °
Government.
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17 SHARE CAPITAL 17 B&®

Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
stiliveid= H{E
(thousands) HK$'000
(F5H) ST
At 1 January 2008 RZEZENFE—H—H 1,112,129 111,213
Repurchase of shares (Note (b)) BRI (H1ab)) (600) (60)
Issue of shares (Note (c)) BITIRAD (W1 3E(c) 2,000,751 200,075

At 31 December 2008 RZEZENF+=_A=+—H
and 1 January 2009 MZZTNF—H—H 3,112,280 311,228
Issue of shares (Note (d)) BT (B2t (d)) 310,000 31,000
At 31 December 2009 R-EBEEANFE+-_A=+—H 3,422,280 342,228

Notes:

(a)

(o)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting on 14 August 2008, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased to 3,800 million shares
with a nominal value of HK$0.1 per share. All issued shares are
fully paid.

The Company repurchased 600,000 of its own shares of
HK$0.1 per share on the Stock Exchange on 22 January 2008.
The price paid per share was HK$0.61. The total amount paid
for the repurchase of shares was approximately HK$366,000
and has been deducted from shareholders’ equity. The shares
repurchased were subsequently cancelled.

On 22 June 2008, the board of directors of the Company
announced to propose to raise approximately HK$300 million
before expenses, by issuing up to 2,000,751,226 offer shares
of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company (the
“Offer Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per Offer
Share by way of an open offer, in the proportion of eighteen
Offer Shares to ten shares held on the record date (the “Open
Offer”). The ordinary resolutions in respect of the Open
Offer were duly passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 14
August 2008. Completion of the Open Offer took place on 9
September 2008 and accordingly, 2,000,751,226 Offer Shares
were allotted and issued at a subscription price of HK$0.15
per Offer Share. The Company raised a sum of approximately
HK$300 million before expenses through the Open Offer.

Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 21 October 2009,
the Company allotted and issued a total of 310,000,000 new
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.35 each. Total net
proceeds from the placing of approximately HK$106.5 million
were intended to be used as the Group’s general working
capital.

Bt -

R-ZEZN\FN\A+EOEBRRENASE
B EERFIE IR RDAERANESER -
BREERER0.IT - A ETRNG
EREER -

ARARZZZENGF—AZFTZBEBER
Ffr i [51600,000 8 & AR EEE 0.1 7T 2 IR
1% o BT ERR(ER BE0.617T - BRI
9 BT 48 B 4975 366,000 © E BIRE
IR o FTIB R EREBRES -

R-ZBENFEANA-+-H  AATES
BAMERAAREE - RRCSEEEIA
A TREROITER - N \REERMHH
EEfl + AERR & R D 015 T I R
8 » 3175%%2,000,751,226f% 3 S/ -
SREESK0.10TTZ AR RBRA([#E
&)  BEEH=EBBTRFIRZ) (A
AEE]) RZZTZN\FNA+HBALET
ZARNBIRRERIAG £ BEAARR
FREBLRARRIELHARE - RHR
EER=ZTZTN\FNLANBATEMK - &It
AN B AGRE I ERMH BB 015 TR RE
8 » B3 & 3172,000,751,226 % 3 & %
7o ARRIBEBARABREERN=FEAET
(REtF%) °

BER=ZZZNF+A=T—HFEILZ
Bl ARRIAERBEERMHEE
0.357T R EMAR AT REEE H
310,000,000f& #T AR {0 ° BE & P15 5K IEF
A HABE 065 T REREE K
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17 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 17 B&&FE(E)

Share options

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
6 June 2002, shareholders of the Company approved
the termination of the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 23 July 1999 and the adoption of a
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”). Under
the New Scheme, the Company may grant options to
employees (including executive directors) of the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time excluding for this purpose
shares issued on exercise of options. The subscription
price will be determined by the directors, and will not be
less than the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the trading day of granting the options and
the average of the closing prices of the shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of granting the options.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised
or lapsed during the years ended 31 December 2008
and 2009. No share options were outstanding at 31
December 2008 and 2009.

Rz

ARV -TZ_FRNANBRITZIK
RAFKRE LEGRRIEKIERFR
—NANFELA - +=RRAZBERE
s8I MR AR 8 ([#Et8l ) -
RIEFE  ARAARTEECZET
(BRMTESR)BRENZBARAZ
B BERRERZERAARCET
IR Z 30% (NEH A B 77 {6 i s A 7 2%
THRD) - BRZRBEHEFRE -
W HADRBDEE  EROBRES
B A B8t 32 P T i oz W B AR R h B X
BRI AER S A AR FFER F19
WhB=Ez&EE -

REBEE_ZZN\FR-_ZETAF+_H
=t HIEFE  WEBRERRL
BU - TRERERR - R_TENFR
ZETZNF+_A=+—"BYBERTEZ
FERSHE
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18 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS 18 HE#BREZGEF
Group
48
Capital
Share Capital ~ redemption  Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve  adjustments profits Total
RiPEE EXitts EADBRE hERR RERA a8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
ARTL  A%Tm BRI A%Tx ARt B%Tx

At 1 January 2008 R=EZN\&-A-H 572,861 20,475 11,977 38,987 440,237 1,084,537
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (148,808) (148,808)
Share of other comprehensive Nt NG o
(loss)income of associates 2E(BR) /WA - (185) - 6,069 - 5,884
Repurchase of shares BERH (306) - 60 - (60) (306)
Issue of shares IR0 100,038 - - - - 100,038
Share issue expenses RHETEY (10,054) = = = = (10,054)
Share of other reserves Nt AN N
of associates e - 2,669 - - - 2,669
Currency translation differences ~ EBEH 5 - - - 19,340 - 19,340
At 31 December 2008 RZEENETZA
=t-H 662,539 22,959 12,037 64,396 291,369 1,053,300
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18 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 18 HTREBREZRF &)

Group
k&
Capital
Share Capital  redemption  Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve  adjustments profits Total
kihaR BARiE BEORER Y ] REEY L

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTT ERTR ERTR

At 1 January 2009 R=EEnE-A—H 662,539 22,959 12,037 64,396 291,369 1,053,300
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (4,646) (4,646)
Share of other comprehensive FrifME ARy
income/(loss) of associates 2ARA/(FB) - 3310 = (330) = 2,980
Issue of shares Bk 77,500 - - - - 71,500
Share issue expenses RHEFEY (1,757) - - - - (1,757)
Share of other reserves Nt NG N
of associates EL - 2,224 - - - 2,224
Currency translation differences ~ EWEH 8 - - - (881) = (881)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE+ZA
=t-H 738,282 28,493 12,037 63,185 286,723 1,128,720
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18 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 18 HTREBREZRF &)

Company
A7)
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
BiEE AXRREE SARER  RERN a8

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT  ARTT  B¥TR  E%TR A¥Tx

At 1 January 2008 RZEEN\E—A—A 572,861 11,977 128,832 10,833 724,503
Profit for the year EERF - - - 2,104 2,104
Repurchase of shares BORH (306) 60 - (60) (306)
Issue of shares Bk 100,038 - - = 100,038
Share issue expenses BRINETEY (10,054) - - - (10,054)
At 31 December 2008 RZZE\E+-A=+—H 662,539 12,037 128,832 12,877 816,285
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE—F—H 662,539 12,037 128,832 12,877 816,285
Loss for the year FEEAR - - - (8,078) (8,078)
Issue of shares &kt 77,500 - - - 77,500
Share issue expenses RiABIRAY (1,757) - - - (1,757)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENET-A=1—H 738,282 12,037 128,832 4,799 883,950
Contributed surplus represents the difference between BABR TN T 2 EEEE AN B
the nominal amount of the shares issued and the RAIZFEERABECERE - MARHK
book value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries A EITAL IR S BB B AR (D B {EE AR I B
acquired. It can be utilised for issuance of bonus shares A o

or for capital redemption upon repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed BEABRE—NLN\—FREE BAR
surplus is distributable to shareholders subject to the A D IRAGRER - B ()RDIEE - A
condition that a company shall not declare or pay a RIARBEEEDHAGER K (N HEE 2 A&
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed REELREEE  BEITRARRMD
surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable HEIRZ B - ARRTEEE Mk T
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the IR B D IRINRBER ©

realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than

the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves (excluding retained profits) RZZBZNF+A=+—8 A5
as at 31 December 2009 available for distribution to KERR 2 AR BIFEE(TREREA
shareholders were represented by the contributed ) BB ERE)E#128,832,0007T( =

surplus of approximately HK$128,832,000 (2008: =T\ : 5#128,832,0007T) °
HK$128,832,000).
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19 BORROWINGS 19 18
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
HBETT BT T
Non-current FEMED
Bank borrowings |ITEK 386,540 146,467
Other loans from minority B AR DEARERN
shareholders of subsidiaries HEEER 4,438 4,438
Finance lease liabilities MmEREaRE 1,054 2,518
392,032 153,423
Current B
Bank borrowings RITER 565,679 432,558
Other loans under margin HFEMETEEER
facilities - 9,790
Finance lease liabilities BMEHEAE 1,445 1,501
567,124 443,849
Total borrowings BEK 959,156 597,272
Secured borrowings are as follows: BEMREFLT :
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Bank borrowings SRITER 283,818 209,519
Other loans under margin facilites FEFME THETEX = 9,790
Finance lease liabilities BmEHERE 2,499 4,019
286,317 223,328
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$283,818,000 RITE A E 283,818,000 0( —EF
(2008: HK$209,519,000) were secured by certain J\SF : 75#209,519,0007T) A S HHE
leasehold land, land use rights, buildings and investment T TR BFERIREYEE
properties (see Notes 6, 7 and 8). Finance lease liabilities BH(RHE6 - 7k8) - MMEHEERE
are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets ER FBEAR  ARAENMIEERERM
revert to the lessor in the event of default. EEEMNEREHEBLAEA

e Annual Report 2009 3k 131 I



6§§ﬁ ' . .

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 BORROWINGS (continued)

Other loans from minority shareholders of subsidiaries

iR e MRS AR MY RE

19 BE®#E)

MEBARLERRNETE]

st

I

B

were unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable
within one year.

Certain banking facilities of the Group are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 3.1(c). As at 31 December 2009, none of

1 - SR8 BN AR — AR -

AEBEFNDRITEEAXBTRALH
ETEERBRLEEENZOMRR -
ZERNEARN B BMEBERNEE
R EAKEERRY - AT R
MERKEARERKEE - ~AEEEE
HERZERNNETER - AEEE
BRBE S E R AE — P IFENH T
31 - R=FEFNF+-_HA=1+—8"
AEBEYEERABEREENRZLY

the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2008: Nil).

The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

(ZZENF &) -

Bank borrowings Other loans
HMITER HEHER

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BT BT

Within one year —FR 565,679 432,558 - 9,790
Between one and two years —Z% —F R 126,818 24,720 = -
Between two and five years —ZHFR 226,758 68,623 4,438 4,438
Between five and ten years F#ZE+FR 32,964 53,124 = =
952,219 579,025 4,438 14,228

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their
fair values.

EFRREEEE A FERT -
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19 BORROWINGS (continued) 19 ;&)
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE
— minimum lease payments: —EBEERK
Not later than one year N —F 1,521 1,629
Later than one year and not later @@ —F
than five years BRBRAFE 1,100 2,727
2,621 4,356
Future finance charges on finance FEMREZ AK
leases =] (122) (337)
Present value of finance lease mEHEAEZ
liabilities HE 2,499 4,019
The present value of finance lease FEHEEEZ
liabilities is as follows: WEWT :
Not later than one year TiEE—F 1,445 1,501
Later than one year and not later  Bi@E—4F
than five years BAEBRAF 1,054 2,518
2,499 4,019
The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting RS AR ERAEOT ¢
period as follows:
2009 2008

Uss  RMB HK$ uss RMB HK$ EUR
Xt AERW BT XL ARE AT BT

Bank borrowings RITER 35%  5.6% 25% 47%  7.1%  27%  63%
Finance lease liabilities BERERE - - 2.0% - - 5.1% -
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19 BORROWINGS (continued) 19 BR#E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are EEERNIEEmSRELA RIS BR8]

denominated in the following currencies:

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT R IT
Us$ ETT 592,187 263,370
RMB AR 207,958 105,170
HK$ PBTT 159,011 197,752
Other currencies Hp gk - 30,980

959,156 597,272

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EIEFRB{R
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account RIEFTISHIIR B 2 @ MT ¢
is as follows:
2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT
At 1 January R—A—H (71,068) (31,830)
Exchange differences M 5 =R = (3,649)
Income statement charge EIRERNEG (7,428) (35,589)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—8~ (78,496) (71,068)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss TEFE PS5 & B T R FE AR B 5 75 1) 2 A]
carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the related BIBARRERT A IR ML AT 4EsE 2
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. THIBIEIER - AEEARERTIELND
The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately #356,996,000 7L (=TT )\ F : B
HK$356,996,000 (2008: HK$333,498,000), which certain 333,498,0007T) © AR BHFELHBSM
amounts are subject to approval from the Hong Kong BRHE - FEEAMEETIEN -
Inland Revenue Department. These carry forwards began T N\FHBER - MEBSHNTIBRNEE
to expire in 2008 for Mainland China and can be carried BARR o Bi18 7] 4588 DATE S5 R SR FE aR B UK
forward indefinitely for Hong Kong. Tax losses can be A e

carried forward to offset future taxable income.
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 20 BEFRBRE)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and FERNELEFREHREERBEEH (HF
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same — R R 7 RSN AT N

taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Accelerated tax Investment
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation properties Others Total
BEMFRARK mEREHE REmx it #n

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTR  ERTT RRTR ARt EWFR AR ERIR ARTx

At 1 January R—A-A (631) (785 (83,6200  (35313) (7,149) (9,410  (91,400)  (45,508)
Recognised in the income RERRER

statement 2 160 (8,990)  (45,003) (1,797) 2,704 (10,765)  (42,139)
Exchange differences EiZR - (6) - (3,304) - (443) - (3,753)
At 31 December Rt-A=1-A (609 (631)  (92610) (836200  (8946) (7,149 (102,065  (91,400)

Decelerated tax

Deferred income tax assets depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BREFARRE ARRERE #iR it #0

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTR ERTT RRTR AR RWFR ARTr ERIR ARTx

At 1 January R-A-H 1,170 423 19,057 13,156 105 99 20,332 13,678
Recognised in the income HEERED

statement i 745 3,260 5,805 - - 3,337 6,550
Exchange differences EiEE - 2 - % - 6 - 104
At 31 December Rt=A=1-A 1,247 1170 2317 19,057 105 105 23669 20332
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 20 BEFBRZ)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet as
assets/liabilities not realisable/due within one year:

BEAEEMNABEARAEERRA
BB AEERE - MELEAFHEEE—
PADAHERE - RIR] AR AL PR 1S IR B B SR
EFSHAEEREE - At AEE KR
HE - MeREFREEERBRAMN
TAR—FRER PPz EEBFE
SR

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Deferred income tax assets FEIEFTS IR EE 23,136 20,054
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEHRAaRE (101,632) (91,122)
(78,496) (71,068)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprise
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2009, no deferred income tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
and associates will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates in Mainland China for which deferred
income tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$6,512,000 at 31 December 2009.

REBEFHPECEMAEVE - RAERM
BRI Z SNEIIR B X RSNE IR EE TR
ZBRBABKRI10% AT  thRER =
ZEZEN\F-A-BAERALERAR _ZTF
TtFT A=+ —HREZEF -
B Ay B SN IR & & P RDA R R AT 3L
HIIRL) - BIRE 2 FEMR KA @&
e pAKEMS - EBRAHRERK10% °
At - AREARERFBEAMRT 2
ZEWNBRAMBERBRN —FEN
F—A—ARELZBNMIKRMN 2 RS
BARTERM ©

R-ZETZAE+-_A=1+—8  HEmR
NE B B R S 2 B A 7 K B
&N A LR BE B A R B 2 B R
REMBELAEH - E2RA - WEH
I NCTSE A /NCIE S NEIE: AT S
RDIRZERF] o WRERBELETSH
BEZHRE NI B AR RS QTR
BEWRZBEZEREZBR_STNE
+ZA=+—H& X 756,512,000

JG ©
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21 BILLS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21 BEFAREREMIRE

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as

e RIE R B IRIRIRE DT AT -

follows:

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETIT BEETIT

Within three months =@ARN 359,049 334,400
Over six months but within BB~ E A

twelve months THBE+T=@A - 1,497

359,049 335,897

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts
payable are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBENEMNEEMEMRENRES

BATIEEREN

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETIT BT
us$ ETT 315,567 291,418
RMB AR 3,175 22,969
HK$ BT 4,922 623
EUR BT 35,385 20,887
359,049 335,897
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22 OTHER GAINS, NET 22 Hella s
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
Fair value gains/(losses) on RATEERERTR
financial assets at fair value WS EE 2 AN FE
through profit or loss W,/ (E18) 17,202 (56,551)
Interest income: FEWA -
- on bank deposits —iRITER 2,248 9,547
— on other receivables —H e R 261 762
Dividend income ISR ON 106 727
Investment income/(loss) BE W (EE) 19,817 (45,515)
Fair value gains on investment KEMFEN RN TE
properties g %5 39,085 13,775
Gain arising from transfer from FEYEERS
properties held for sale to REYHEFTESE
investment properties 2R - 169,139
Gains on disposal of property, HEWS - W REE
plant and equipment i 675 402
Loss on deemed acquisition of RVERE ABE N AR
interest in an associate (Note (a))  E538(K7iZ(a)) - (13,537)
Others HE 24,866 17,457
84,443 141,721
Note: Het
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s equity @ REEZZZNF+ZA=T—HBIHF
interest in China LotSynergy Holdings Limited was increased B REMERERAAEERGD - A&
from 20.14% to 20.83% as a result of repurchase of its B AR H20.14%E I1Z=20.83% ©
own shares by China LotSynergy Holdings Limited. In this Ut SEEREEBABREARERE
connection, the Group recognised loss on deemed acquisition 184775 413,537,0007T ©

of interest in an associate of approximately HK$13,537,000.
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23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BHEESEMER

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are

FIESHERDN  SHERDHBERN—R
RITRERANERITMT :

analysed as follows:

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T
Depreciation of property, I - 2R K
plant and equipment X E
— owned assets —BBBE 9,959 10,042
— assets held under finance —BMEHEEE
leases 926 1,301
Amortisation of prepaid AR EERE
operating lease payments TNIE 1,648 1,647
Amortisation of intangible assets £ & & i 20 20
Operating lease rentals LEHEMEE 5,459 9,199
Employee benefit expense EERAMAX
(including directors’ (BEESH2)
emoluments) (Note 24) (Bat24) 71,213 99,655
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE 130 -
Write-down of inventories to BEFEER
net realisable value Al IR FE
(included in cost of sales) (BREREEKA) - 67,825
Provision for impairment of FE W R IR
accounts receivable B A 1,210 556
Net exchange gains PE 5 F s (5,367) (8,160)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BX A B <& 880 880
24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 24 RERRFIMAX
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Wages and salaries HeILE 63,696 91,393
Pension costs — defined IRIRER A — RG]
contribution plans (Note (a)) (Htiz(a)) 4,114 3,943
Staff welfare 8 TER 3,403 4,319
71,213 99,655
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 EERFIAXZ)

(a) B&—-FEHRE

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Original Scheme”), which
is managed by independently administered funds.
The Group's monthly contributions are based on 5%
of employees’ monthly salaries. The employees are
entitled to receive 100% of the Group’s contribution
and the accrued interest thereon upon retirement
or leaving the Group after completing ten years of
service or at a reduced scale of 30% to 90% after
completing three to nine years of services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after
1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for
these employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the employer’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per month per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at rates of approximately 8%
to 22% of the basic salaries of its employees in
Mainland China, and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the
Group’s contributions to the aforementioned
schemes was approximately HK$4,114,000 (2008:
HK$3,943,000) without deduction of forfeited
contributions of the Original Scheme.

AEEEEBSREELHLEAB
VESERZ R TERFKEMNKT S
([R&T81)) - REBE A 2 H5iz
BB AFHIS%ATE » RBIREE
KimTFERISEBRAASEE @ B8
HE RIS EB MR L ER
FE - EEOM=F N EREA IR
30% Z=90% Lk UL EX o

AEFEAE-_TETF+_A—H%&
ABBBREE LD EAHIIEATE
SEral([BESEFE]) » —EEB
VEFEABEMNAREHEKEE - B
BB E  AEEREREES
HAZBAGEARSIEH AR
T EBABEESFSHIS%ER -
EEREENSBHFIERAER
BE® AAE% 1,000 7t °

RIBFEDEPIRTE - AREREF
BEES2EEKEBARIKGTE -
AEBERHEEEEARFHFSH8%E
22% K - BRFEEFIN - NEE
BEAERCERRARSMRIE
RERFOEE - BREBHRIK
AERERMNMEREENZEIEE

ZRE-

RER - AEBY s 8EL
HERBTBLHENEA,114,0007T (==
T )\ : 5%3,943,0007T) - Wi
[RETEIE R UK ©
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 ERWEFIAXZE)
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) EEREHREEEFM
The remuneration of every director for the year BE-ZEAF+-_A=+—8It
ended 31 December 2009 is set out below: FE  BRESHFIET :
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contribution
and  Discretionary  to pension
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total
R 1] il g )
¢ 431 g Rigl RigEe EL:E A8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR

Executive directors HTES
Mr. CHAN Shing Bk E - 4,936 480 211 5,627
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EEREE - 2,275 280 105 2,660
Mr. YANG Dawei BARLE - 583 - - 583
Ms. LAU Ting At - 4,364 - 185 4,549
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia ~ Efifizt - 1,607 247 74 1,928
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam DEFLE - 1,560 620 72 2,252
Mr. YIN Mark FiEE - 1,326 - 50 1,376
Mr. SHAM Kai Man (Note (i) SBUCEE(H7() - 700 - 32 732
Independent non-executive BUFNTES

directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERRE 363 - - - 363
Mr. MIAO Gengshu EHELE 360 - - - 360
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BREELE 265 - - - 265
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael PETELE 120 - - - 120
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 ERRFIFAZZE)

(b) EEREREEBTM =)

(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(continued)

BE-TT\E+-A=+-AL
T GREFOFMOT -

The remuneration of every director for the year
ended 31 December 2008 is set out below:

Salaries, Employer's
allowances contribution
and  Discretionary to pension
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total
¥4 28 RINETEI
BEMA ik RigH [il%a EEHT ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BET T BT BET T
Executive directors HTES
Mr. CHAN Shing BRos ot - 5,984 3,136 210 9,330
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EEREE - 2,266 3,450 105 5,821
Mr. YANG Dawei BARLE - 573 - = 573
Ms. LAU Ting Zfe it = 5,416 2,844 183 8,443
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia ke - 1,603 120 74 1,797
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam PEREA - 1,549 1,119 71 2,739
Mr. YIN Mark Fi %A - 1,143 380 42 1,565
Independent non-executive BUFNTES
directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERRE 361 - - - 361
Mr. MIAQ Gengshu (Note (i) EHELEMH])) 23 - - - 23
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BRELE 264 - - - 264
Mr. SONG Yufang (Note (iii) — REFEE (H:ii) 86 - - = 86
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael PETELE 120 = - - 120
Notes: HiaF -
(i) Appointed on 20 July 2009. (i) MN=BETAFEA-tHZMFE-
(i)  Appointed on 8 December 2008. (i) RZZZENF+=ZANBZEE-
(i)  Resigned on 18 September 2008. @iy RZZTZNFRAT/\BEHE -
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 24 EERFIRAZZ)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (0 HfisEHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEEEERFTMOALALTE
highest in the Group for the year include five (2008: BAM(ZEZBNE : Of)E= -
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected I FME EX 2RO ITH R
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments Me-HE—"ZTZNF+_A=1—
payable to the remaining one non-director for AR T —(IIEES  ZaHFALH
the year ended 31 December 2008, highest paid FHENEOR -

individual are as follows:

2008
HK$'000
BT T
Salaries, allowances and e FRRER
benefits 1,532
Discretionary bonuses [l geacn 3,200
Employer’s contributions to 3R IREHEIAYE K
pension scheme 70
4,802
25 FINANCE COSTS 25 MERF
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Interest on: A
— Bank borrowings wholly —-RAFHRNEHEEN
repayable within five years RITERK 26,558 50,881
— Bank borrowings not wholly —TERAFAZEEE
repayable within five years HIRITER 1,152 2,172
— Other loans —HEEER 418 705
— Finance lease liabilities —BREHERE 102 249
28,230 54,007
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26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 26 PSR

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda
until 2016. The Company’s subsidiaries established in
the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Subsidiaries of
the Group in Mainland China are subject to Mainland
China enterprise income tax ranging from 12.5% to
25% (2008: 12.5% to 25%) on their taxable income
determined according to Mainland China tax laws.
Taxation on other overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The amount of taxation recognised in the consolidated
income statement represents:

ARBARHERERBEE_T—
FoREBEZEEKZZHWBEART
CHRBELEEHEMH - EAFEH
BRAFEEAERBIENZ 165% (=
TTENF : 165%) BE - REBR AP
B2 B AR BMRP B EMER
REBRRAEEERBAEZ125%E
25% ( —ZFF)\F : 125% FE25% ) 5
B o HEBINERZ BB REMGHF
ERERFEFNEAEECLEEBERY
BITHRTE o

REFERBERER BB

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Current tax AREFIE
- Hong Kong profits tax —EFBRER 960 8,730
— Mainland China taxation — B FIA 615 1,157
1,575 9,887
Adjustments in respect of LART S %
prior years
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBFIER 3,480 23,148
— Mainland China taxation — R IE (82) 953
3,398 24,101
Deferred income tax relating to RIE RS B
the origination and reversal EREMESE
of temporary differences R #E O] 7,428 35,589
12,401 69,577
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26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 26 FRi3 (&)
The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax ANEFBHBEBRFEMAIRTN(BB)Z
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using BHERRERAARAATALBER 2=
the tax rate of the home country of the Company as Met&E 2 BAFizE 2 Z58m T
follows:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BErBR A&, (Ei8) 20,065 (35,326)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5%  1&#12£16.5%
(2008: 16.5%) (ZZZT)N\F : 16.5%)5 & 3,310 (5,829)
Effect of different taxation rates  E T BEIRAEH =X
in other countries ZRE 2,840 16,784
Effect on opening deferred tax of  #i R g (K % Ei W) 3E IE £ 18
decrease in tax rates P - 41
Income not subject to taxation AR 2 WA (2,668) (820)
Expenses not deductible for IR
taxation purposes ZXH 3,531 35,960
Unrecognised tax loss REEAR I8 3,493 9,937
Adjustments in respect of prior years LA Bl [E #3 % 3,398 24,101
Recognition of previously AR ARBRER
unrecognised temporary JERER
differences 431 (2,157)
Utilisation of previously FERERIAREER
unrecognised tax losses 2T (3,801) (10,387)
Others EE 1,867 1,947
Tax charge MIEYH 12,401 69,577

27 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 27 FLAFIREFEBAEEET

COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company ERAR A Bk R 2 AR Az
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company FE A B FZEEBAAE%S,078,000
to the extent of a loss of approximately HK$8,078,000 T(ZZEZ)N\F : BFKEE 2,104,000
(2008: a profit of approximately HK$2,104,000). JC) ©
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28 LOSS PER SHARE 28 BEEBR
Basic and diluted BEXRiHE
Basic and diluted loss per share are calculated by dividing FIEARREEERBIEAN A ESE
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by BEAEEER  BUERERTEEEK
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue By INFE I E 5T E -
during the year.
2009 2008
Loss attributable to equity holders 7N AI#EzE A A
of the Company (HK$'000) EihEE(B% T (4,646) (148,808)
Weighted average number of B EITE R
ordinary shares in hniEFE9 8
issue (thousands) (F5H) 3,164,937 1,750,769
Basic and diluted loss per share FREARK #EEE
(HK cents per share) (FFREEAL) (0.15) (8.50)
The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares RARRBEZZET N\FR=2ZETNF
for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009. T A=t —HIEFETETEENE
fEEimpR o
29 DIVIDENDS 29 BER

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
Nil).

EERTHRABE_ZTZNF T A
=T HLEFERARPBRE(ZFTN
FE) e
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30 BaRSTERME

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash used in operations

(a) BEFAMRS

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEEF/(BE) 7,664 (104,903)
Adjustments for: R
— Tax — %1\ 12,401 69,577
- Depreciation —E 10,885 11,343
- Amortisation — By 1,668 1,667
— Gains on disposal of property, —HEME  EER
plant and equipment RfE 2w (675) (402)
— Fair value gains on investment —RENMENATE
properties Wi (39,085) (13,775)
- Gain arising from transfer from —FENEERS
properties held for sale to REMERES
investment properties PG - (169,139)
— Fair value (gains)/losses on financial —BATERBER
assets at fair value through SRS BE L
profit or loss NFE(BRF),/ER (17,202) 56,551
- Loss on deemed acquisition of —RIERB AR E AR
interest in an associate EnEE = 13,537
- Impairment of intangible assets - BV EERE 130 -
- Dividends received from financial — B AT EER
assets at fair value through BRI B 7
profit or loss BERS (106) (727)
— Interest income —FIEMA (2,509) (10,309)
~ Finance costs —BERA 28,230 54,007
— Share of losses of associates — iR A BB 1R 18,932 196,866
— Effect of foreign exchange rate — SNEEE R B E) 7
changes 7 (786) (740)
19,547 103,553
Changes in working capital: LEEGET
— Inventories -FE 42,768 4,766
- Bills and accounts receivable —EWEE M EWIRIE (101,617) (79,199)
- Deposits, prepayments and —&e  BETR
other receivables He KGR (303,792) (105)
- Bills and accounts payable —ENEE R EMIRE 23,152 (193,181)
~ Other payables and accruals —HeRMIRBRETER (57,114) 8,986
Cash used in operations LEMANES (377,056) (155,180)
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30 BEeReRBERME 2)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash (b) RMERBRLEEMREERSIF
equivalents
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Cash at bank and in hands RITREFRS 254,812 167,241

Non-pledged short-term bank FRiFz A= B AT
deposits with original maturity 2 JEH 345 HA

of less than three months RITIF 11,124 144,312
265,936 311,553
31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 RERHARAR
(a) Capital commitments (a) BERIE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
Contracted but not provided B 25 47/8 R4
— Machinery — 23 - 16
(b) Operating lease commitments — where the (b) BEHSRE-—FTEBEEAREA
Group is the lessee
At 31 December 2009, the Group had future RZZEZFNF+ZA=+—H &
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- ERB A HIE 2 2 EREMRAK
cancellable operating leases as follows: RE 2 HARAERNHARTEAT -
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Not later than one year BB —F 990 5,129
Later than one year and not ~ —% /&8
later than five years MR F 144 257
1,134 5,386
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31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 AIERRREBZ)
(continued)

(c) Operating leases — where the Group is the lessor (0 BEHE-FEESHAA
At 31 December 2009, the Group had future R-EBEFEHhE+—_A=+—H &
minimum lease payments receivable under non- EERBENIREENLEREMRN
cancellable operating leases as follows: KU EN 7 =K FH & I8 & %8 10
I
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Not later than one year BB —F 14,317 13,500
Later than one year and not ~ #BiB— 418
later than five years THBBARF 12,879 17,758
27,196 31,258
Contingent-based rents recognised in the consolidated RiFeERRERNNAHSL
income statement were approximately HK$2,421,000 BBE2421,000C( —FEF )\ 4F:
(2008: Nil). &) -
(d) Corporate guarantees (d) 2AFEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Guarantee for general BEE N RIRITRE
banking facilities granted fEH Z R
to an associate 21,730 21,730
Guarantee for general REEEIRITRE
banking facilities granted B Z R
to a supplier - 23,400
Guarantees given to banks AEEMEEES
for mortgage facilities RRE M MERTT
granted to the buyers of B Z R
the Group's properties 86 2,107
21,816 47,237
In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities EERR - EAERR —REBB
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in BPTEELEEANEE  MAKE
the ordinary course of business and the fair value of PRt R B ER 2 A THERRDY -
the corporate guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.
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31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(e) Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

At 31 December 2009, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts to buy a maximum amount of
US dollar of 39,234,000 (2008: buy a maximum
amount of US$60,000,000 and sell a maximum
amount of US$7,000,000) against Hong Kong dollar
and a maximum amount of US dollar of 13,000,000
against Renminbi.

(f) Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s contingent
liabilities relating to Mainland China land
appreciation tax amounted to approximately
HK$30,009,000 (2008: HK$30,009,000).

32 CHARGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2009, the following assets were
pledged:

(a) Certain leasehold land, land use rights and
buildings with a net book amount of approximately
HK$141,338,000 (2008: HK$113,982,000);

(b) Certain motor vehicles and machinery with a net
book amount of approximately HK$4,577,000 (2008:
HK$5,905,000);

(c) Certain investment properties of approximately
HK$550,613,000 (2008: HK$449,942,000); and

(d) At 31 December 2008, certain financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of equity securities listed
in Hong Kong with market value of approximately
HK$36,919,000.

AR e MRS AR MY RE

31

32

RiERERARE)

(e) EHMESH

R-BZHFE+-_A=1+—H &K
EERBITHERBINES LEIER
%% A AN39,234,000k T (==
T N\F : &% EEA60,000,000% 7T
N &% % & H 7,000,000 7T ) #iE 7T
N 5 % 7888 A 13,000,000 7T ¥ A
R# o

(f) HMAAR

R-ZBZNFE+_A=+—H &
AT E L IS ERNSREE
#) /578 #30,009,000T ( —ZEZT )\
£ : ¥ 30,009,0007T) °

WEEH

RZZBEAE+_A=1+—H UTE&
EE T

(@) ERMOTEE LM - HHFERENET
I TEDF (B 4978 5 141,338,0007T (=
T\ 4 : #%#113,982,0007T)

(b) BB1D B H % 220K TR B 4078 15
4,577,000 c( —ZEZ N\ F : B
5,905,0007T) :

(0 Sp{ni% & ¥ % 4978 # 550,613,000
TL(=ZZ )\ : E#449,942,000
JT) &

(d RZZTZENF+=-_A=+—8" &
BIRAFEEBRBSYIRGM B
BEMNBELMESFMENBE
36,919,0007T °
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 MBAXH

Parties are considered to be related if one has the Fri8 BRAE AT TIIe B e ) BE o difE
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party ZHl S —F B SE 2
or exercise significant influence over the other party in MEERBITEERTENZ AL - [
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also B sz EA TR EEESISKER
considered to be related if they are subject to common B2 NETHERIERBEAL -

control or common significant influence.

() BEBE—RBEEHERTET 2@

(a) Related party transactions which were carried out

in the normal course of the Group’s business are as ARZWT
follows:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Rental income received from 2 UkHE< A A S WA
associates 2,137 1,072
Service income received B IS & A A RIS WA
from an associate 375 365
Sales to associates SHE THEE A F] 2,188 1,733
Sale of motor vehicles to $HE T E T HE S N A
an associate 600 -
Purchase from an associate MBS N REE 22,925 97,889
Rental expense paid to EfEE A ARHEESRAY
an associate 672 960
(b) Compensation to key management personnel (b) EEEBRAEME
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BT T
Wages and salaries HeIlE 17,870 26,650
Pension costs — defined RIREKA — R E
contribution plans HFETE 729 685
Staff welfare B T&F 1,108 2,933
19,707 30,268
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 BEBAXRE)

(c) Details of loan to a director of the Company,
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

(0 WRIBERBIRPIFE 161B &M AR E
RAEFERZFHBOT

Name of borrower YIN Mark
BRALH FiT
Position Executive Director
Bz HITES

Terms of the loan
ST

— interest rate

4% per annum

—H = FRME
— security unsecured
— K AR
— repayment term 4 years
—RRFH sk
— borrowing date 26 March 2008
— & H —EENF=A=+"H

Balance of loan in respect of principal and interest

ERAE KA B &R

— at 31 December 2008 HK$733,000
—-RZZEENF+=ZA=1+—H 75 %733,0007T
— at 31 December 2009 HK$586,000
- RZTENF+=A=1+—H 751£586,0007T
Maximum balance outstanding during the year HK$733,000
F &= KRR 75#733,00070

I 152 Annual Report 2009 4 iy |



O iiivmile.....

fre M HRARM T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 15 December 2009, the Company’s board of
directors (the “Board”) resolved to put forward to
shareholders a proposal involving (i) the proposed
reduction of the entire amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company
to nil; (ii) the proposed amendments to the bye-
laws of the Company which would allow either the
shareholders or the Board to approve distributions
to shareholders out of the contributed surplus of the
Company to be satisfied by distribution of specific
assets and allow the Board to approve any interim
dividend payment (the “Bye-laws Amendments”);
and (iii) the proposed distribution out of the
contributed surplus of the Company to shareholders
which would be satisfied by the distribution (the
“Distribution”) of a maximum of 1,540,025,856
shares of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited (“CLS"),
on the basis of 9 CLS shares for every 20 shares
of the Company held. The special resolutions in
relation to the Bye-Laws Amendments and share
premium reduction and the ordinary resolution in
relation to the Distribution were duly passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting held on
21 January 2010.

Pursuant to the special resolution, the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company was approximately HK$738,200,000
as at 21 January 2010 was reduced to nil and the
credit arising from the reduction of share premium
was transferred to the contributed surplus of the
Company.

At 31 December 2009, the Company held,
directly and indirectly, 1,541,956,296 CLS shares,
representing approximately 20.83% of the then
existing issued share capital of CLS. Upon the
passing of the resolution approving the Distribution,
the Group’'s investment in CLS was classified as a
non-current asset held for distribution to owners
and the consolidated financial statements of CLS
would no longer be equity accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Based on the market price of HK$0.415 per
CLS share upon transfer of CLS share under the
Distribution, the total fair value of the CLS shares
distributed to shareholders under the Distribution
was approximately HK$639,111,000 and was
distributed out of the contributed surplus of the
Company.

34 WEAMKEER

(a)

R-ZBEZNF+-_A+EHB &
ERBEREFTEZTHRER
R BIEOEDRA R RN & E R
EEERSBERES 5 (VAR
FMAEE 2 AR MRS AT
AR AR Al EE R AERE
A& AR R RBARBIRIELEE
EMDIRBEDRETREEARAR
AAI AEEZRERIERBIRAY
FRHEIRE B (R A ANERT) ¢ i)
ZEF20 BRARD A9 BRI IE R
ERAR(TER]) Rz EE
BARADBHMAREBKIE  DERZ
#£1,540,025,856 A& EFEF MM ([ 5
K1) o BRIARAHANERT KB PE
B EBIRNFIRZRREB IR
NE@ERER  ER _T—TF—
AZ+—BRTHRRFRASE
0BG -

BEFRREZER  AR2AIR=F
—ZTF-—A-_+-—HHOAEE
738,200,000t 2w BIRZ &
HERSEBEHRES  UEE
EZERSRETASARTHBAR
BRIR o

RZZEBEZNFF+ZA=+—
B ARARERETHERTA
1,541,956,296 REF I n * h &
FrEE R B B 1TRA4920.83% ° &
IKEPRZ A ERIBR - AEER
B REROERAENIKRTRHE
ARFERENEENER 2 IFAIRE
N BB A S 25T AFT AR S E
ZEREMEImEA o RIBERRMD
EoREZHERELRMNDEE
0.45L 2 TiHE - DIRKRGH 24
B4 &7 #639,111,0007 © I
1 ARAD BRI BAZBRIRE DK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders at the special general meeting
held on 12 February 2010, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000,000 divided into 3,800,000,000 shares
to HK$680,000,000 divided into 6,800,000,000
shares by the creation of 3,000,000,000 new shares.

On 16 March 2010, the Company announced that
it had completed, through the placing manager, the
placing of an aggregate of 307,380,000 new shares
of HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company at
a placing price of HK$0.605 each to at least six
independent investors. The Company raised net
proceeds of approximately HK$184,000,000 which
would be used to replenish the general working
capital requirements of the Company.

On 5 November 2009, Burwill Minerals Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a share purchase agreement with Tai
Xin Investment Limited as supplemented by the
supplemental share purchase agreement dated 24
December 2009 with Tai Xin Investment Limited and
Tai Xin Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) in relation
to the acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital
of Tai Xin Minerals Limited for a total consideration
of HK$500,000,000. The consideration shall be
satisfied by the payment of HK$260,000,000 in
cash and the issue of 685,700,000 new shares at
the issue price of HK$0.35 by the Company to the
Vendor. Further details of the acquisition are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 27 January
2010. Completion of the acquisition took place on
31 March 2010. As of the date of approval of these
financial statements, management of the Group is
still in the midst of determining the financial effect
of the acquisition.

34 WERAMKEEERE)

(b)

BEARABRRE_ZT—ZTF—
A+ZHRTZBRERFINARS B
B EBARAZER  ARAIZAERE
[i% 7S 3% 38 32 5% %A 5 3,000,000,000
[i% 2 & 38 f% /A 75 ¥ 380,000,000 7T
2 BX 3,800,000,000 A% 1% AN &= % &
680,000,000 7t % A 6,800,000,000
B& o

RZZE—ZTE=A+,8 &ARQ
AEMEEERRERETHIZ
FRAE®0.605 T 2R EE R K
DAREBEBIZEEREARR AR
AN R & 307,380,000 A% & A% 74
01T ZHAR o R AR EFH B
184,000,0007T Z FT {5 5} IE F# 78 -
BIEfZARRZ —REEESH

=5

RZZZNF+—FARA - ARFA
2EWBRRIEHEEXEESRA A
EA Tai Xin Investment Limited 5] 32
BrEBEWR  C—TENF+=
A — + M B & Tai Xin Investment
Limited A Tai Xin Holdings Limited
(IER DIz fxikh B B =
#—H{E5T - WBETai Xin Minerals
Limited B 21T A51% @ BREE
7% #500,000,0007T * #IH & B
260,000,000 7T LA R 32 8 1T BB HE
0.35 7T % 17685,700,000 J& Ax A 7]
FIRTE R o WIEFIBEHNA
AR ZE—ZTF—-—A=ZT+EANE
HoWBER T —ZTF=A=+—
B - R #sREAEZR - &
SEEEENEETR BKE M

=748
B2 o
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Schedule of Properties held for Investment RE&EME—E X

Address
b1l

Unit 8, 26/F, Units 1 and 12,

28/F, North Tower, Hong Kong Plaza,

No. 282 Huaihaizhong Road,
Luwan District, Shanghai, China
E LSEEE

A B 28255

BB EIS5ICFE2618

8%  28BIERKI2E

Block No. 0521, Elegant Garden,
No. 189, Longxi Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, China

PR B RERR

BEIR 18958

BA%6 522052158

537 Wenchang Road Central,
Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province,
China

FETERE

T

X 2/ E&53755%

Lease

HYESR

Medium lease
FRERFRAY

Long lease

KL

Medium lease

AR A

Existing use

BRiTHZ

Residential
x=

Residential
(E=c

Commercial

[GES

Group's
interest

wEED

100%

100%

69%
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Five Years' Financial Summary F & 8 7 #f &

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AREBRERAMBFEZEE  EEMEA
financial years are as follows: BT

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT A%TT  BBTR  BR%Tn  AETR

Results 4
Sales e 3,256,714 8,334,596 5,452,012 4,793,364 3,696,566
Gross profit ES ] 97,754 223,221 143,233 82,072 74,645
Operating profit mEBF 67,227 215,547 120,539 223,680 158,266
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: BH/(ER)SBRN :
Equity holders of the Company ENNGIL: 23S =DN (4,646)  (148,808) 86,307 149,380 72,745
Minority interests DR 12,310 43,905 8,964 2,295 6,040
7,664 (104,903) 95,271 151,675 78,785
Assets and liabilities EERAR
Non-current assets FrEEE 1,206,860 994,984 960,434 800,609 595,725
Current assets TEEE 1,891,420 1,669,053 1,675,757 1,653,449 1,538,323
Total assets BEE 3,098,280 2,664,037 2,636,191 2,454,058 2,134,048
Non-current liabilities FrBEE 493,664 244,545 86,928 170,160 324,198
Current liabilities MEAE 1,016,565 950,171 1,297,295 1,279,679 934,612
Total liabilities BakE 1,510,229 1,194,716 1,384,223 1,449,839 1,258,810
Total equity @i 1,588,051 1,469,321 1,251,968 1,004,219 875,238
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